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PATRICK SWAIN
COUNTY AUDITOR
(409) 835-8500

1149 PEARL ST. - 7TH FLOOR
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701

March 17, 2016
Citizens of Jefferson County, Texas:

Honorable District Judges:

Gary Sanderson, Presiding Judge, 60th District Court
John Stevens, Jr., Judge, Criminal District Court
Kent Walston, Judge, 58th District Court

Milton Shuffield, Judge, 136th District Court
Donald Floyd, Judge, 172nd District Court

Raquel West, Judge, 252nd District Court

Randy Shelton, Judge, 279th District Court

Larry Thome, Judge, 317th District Court

Honorable Commissioners' Court:

Jeff Branick, County Judge

Eddie Armold, Commissioner, Precinct No. 1

Brent Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct No. 2

Michael “‘Shane” Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct No. 3
Everette “Bo” Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct No. 4

The County Auditor’s Office (“the Auditor’s Office”) is pleased to present the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) of Jefferson County, Texas (the “County”) for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2015. This report is submitted in accordance with Section 114.025 of the
Texas Local Government Code and has been prepared by the County Auditor’s staff.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

Pattillo, Brown, & Hill, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified (“‘clean™)

opinion on the County’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2015. The
independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Jefferson County was created in 1836 and organized im 1837 as one of the original counties of the
Republic of Texas. It is a 954 square mile county that is located on the upper Texas Coast and is a
component of the Beaumont-Port Arthur-Orange Metropolitan Statistical Area. According to the
U.S. Departinent of Commerce-Bureau of the Census, the 2015 population of the County was
252,235, The County is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located
within its boundaries.

Jefferson County is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and the Commissioners’ Court is the
governing body of the County. Itis composed of the County Judge elected from the County atlarge,
and four Commissioners, each elected from a separate precinct, all elected for four-year terms. The
County Judge is the presiding officer of the Commissioners’ Court.

The County (primary government) solely or in cooperation with other local governmental entities
provides a full range of services authorized by the Texas Constitution and Statutes that includes
construction and maintenance of roads and bridges, health and housing services, assistance to
indigents, juvenile and adult justice programs, economic development, recreation and cultural
enrichment, an airport, an entertainment complex, and general administration.

The combined financial statements of the County as a financial reporting entity report all activities,
organizations, and functions of the County, both as the primary government and its legally separate
components units for which (1) the elected officials of the County are financially accountable and/or
(2) exclusion of component units activities would cause the County’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The County’s component units have been reported as blended with the
County as the primary government or as discrete (separate) component unit, as appropriate. Criteria
used by the County for including activities in preparing these financial statements are in conformity
with GASB 14, The Financial Reporting Entity and GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units. Based on the requirements of these accounting standards, the
County reports the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool as a blended component
unit.

The County is required to adopt a final budget no later than close of the fiscal year. This annual
budget serves as the foundation for the County’s financial planning and control. The level of
budgetary control is the department within the individual funds. The County maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as a method to accomplish budgetary control. Department heads
may transfer resources within a department as needed. Transfers between departments, however,
require approval by Commissioners’ Court,



FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

Local econony

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the County
operates

The area is served by deep-water ports located at Beaumont, Port Arthur, Orange, and Sabine Pass.
The Sabine Neches Waterway provides deep-water access to ocean-going vessels, which are served
by public ports within the County.

The County is traversed by Interstate Highway 10, US Highways 90 and 69-96-287, State Highways
73, 87, and 105 and three fanm-to-market roads. Rail and motor {reight carriers also provide freight
service to the County. The Jack Brooks Regional Airport located between Beaumont and Port
Arthur provides passenger and freight service and is currently serviced by one commuter passenger
air carrier.

The economy of the County is based primarily on petroleum refining; the production and processing
of petrochemicals, bio-fuels and other chemicals; the fabiication of steel and steel products; shipping
activity; the manufacture of wood, pulp, food and feed products; agriculture; and health care
services. The County continues to diversify its economic base as evidenced by the increase of jobs in
the services and government sectors. The County is also home to the largest military off-load port in
the world.

Several large projects are in construction, permitting, and development for the area and the County
continues to work with other taxing entities to create a business environment conducive to this
growth. These include such notables as Lucite, Air Products, Vitol, Golden Pass Produets, OCI, and
Exxon Mobil.

Petrochemical expansions at the Motiva, Total, and Valero facilities located in Jefferson County
represent approxinately $15 billion in project improvements. [n addition, hundreds of millions of
dollars are being spent on termiual and pipeline facilities to support these projects. Construction of
the Trans-Canada Keystone XL pipeline which will deliver Canadian tar sands crude to Jefferson
County and help in relieving our dependence on oil from more politically volatile regions is awaiting
federal permit approval. In addition, recent rail terminal facility expansions and new construction
has significantly increased the transportation of Canadian tar sands oil and bitumen to our area for
processing by area refineries.

Cheniere, one of two companies with Liquefied Natural Gas Terminals on the border of the
Texas/Louisiana Coast, is completing construction of a $10 billion liquefaction facility. Golden Pass
LNG opened their terminal in mid 2011. With their opening, our ship channel is now home to over



40% of the nation’s LNG capacity. Golden Pass LNG has filed with federal authorities for permits
allowing it to build a $10 billion gas liquefaction facility in Jefferson County.

The County has participated in a study by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers into the feasibility of
deepening the Sabine-Neches waterway. This will allow ports in Southeast Texas, the third largest
in the nation, to accommodate newer deep draft vessels and thus remain competitive with other ports
on the Gulf Coast. Recently, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued their “Chief’s Report” which
paves the way for federal funding of this project. The U S House and Senate recently passed
legislation which was signed by the President authorizing the construction of the waterway
improvements at a cost in excess of $1 billion. Congressional appropriations for the project are
expected shortly.

The County continues to work with industry leaders, the Texas Workforce Commission, Lamar
Institute of Technology, L.amar University and non-profit groups to supply a workforce able to
handle the growing labor needs of the County. This is especially critical given the interest of the
international community in locating facilities in our county.

The resurgence in U. S. oil and gas exploration and production has made the County the place of
choice for those industrial sectors seeking to exploit opportunities to profit from historically low
priced energy commodities. Our excellent water bound, rail, highway, and pipeline infrastructure,
the readily availability of water resources, and our business-friendly governmental environment,
coupled with a lower than average tax environment, has caught the attention of energy and
manufacturmg companies worldwide. As aresult, the County fully expects a significant increase in
industrial and commiercial ad valorem values over the next ten years.

Long-term financial planning & Relevant financial policies

Commissioners” Court continues to follow their policy guideline for budgetary and planning
purposes of building arid maintaining an unassigned fund balance in the general fund of at least 15%
of total general fund expenditures and transfers. The County ended the fiscal year with an
unassigned fund balance of 32.0% of total general fund expenditures and transfers. This falls within
the policy guidelines.

Major Initiatives

The Commissioners' Court set the property tax rate at § .365 per $100 of assessed property valuation

to provide funds for services and debt service for fiscal year 2015. Budget initiatives for fiscal year
2015 included:

e Maintained the same property tax rate which was 2.9% below the effective tax rate.

o Provided a 2% salary increase for all employees.
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o Commissioners’ Court would utilize previously transferred funds to complete outstanding
capital projects.

s Maintain capital expenditures for durable goods to replace needed equipment to necessary
levels.

AWARDS

The Governmment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Jefferson County, Texas for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. This
was the sevententh consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit imust publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achuevement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requurements and we are submitting it to
GFOA to determine 1its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of
the staff of the County Auditor’s Office. I express my sincere appreciation to all the members ofthis
office who contributed to its preparation. Also, I express my appreciation to the members of the
Commissioners’ Court, their staff, and all other County officials and employees who have given their
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of Jefferson County, Texas in a
responsible manuer.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for individuals
who are interested in this information. Questions conceming any of the data provided in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the County Auditor’s Office,

1149 Pearl Street 7 Floor, Beawmont, Texas 77701. /

Patrick Swain, C.P.A.
County Auditor
Jefterson County, Texas
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CERTIFIED PUE ‘LIC ACLDUNTANTS B BUSIMESS COMNSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPGRT

To the Honorable County Judge and
Commissioners’ Court
Jefferson County, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson
County, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
staternents, which collectively comprise Jefferson County, Texas’ basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
14 P 34

Jefferson County, Texas’ management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free {rom material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

—
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

[n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson County, Texas, as of September 30,
2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note | to the financial statements, in 2015 the County adopted new accounting guidance,
Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accouniing and Financial Reporting
for Pensions-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and Governmental Accounting Standards
(GASB) Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent (o the Measurement
Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Malters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance—Budget and Actual—General Fund, pension information, and the Other Post Employment
Benefit — Schedule of Funding Progress be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Jefferson County, Texas® basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, capital asset schedules, and
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and capital
asset schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and capital asset schedules are fairly stated,
in all material respects, in refation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
[7, 2016 on our consideration of Jefferson County, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Jefferson County,
Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pkl Brawm < WAL, LLE

Waco, Texas
March 17, 2016






Jefferson County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Jefferson County, we offer readers of the Jefferson County’s financial
statement this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the county for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with the
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found in the introductory section of this report.

Financial Highlichts

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Jefferson County exceeded its
liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2015 by $94,019,823 (net position), a decrease
of 2,191,936 in net position from the previous year. As a result, the county’s
overall financial position has deteriorated from the previous year.

e Ofthe net position, $137,700,866 is net investment in capital assets, $24,695,909
is restricted for specific uses, and $(68,376,952) is unrestricted.

o As of the close of fiscal year 2015, Jefferson County’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $76,509,321, a decrease of
$1,381,289 in comparison with the prior year. About 43% of the total amount,
$32,564,805 is available for spending at the county’s discretion {unassigned fund
balance).

o Atthe end of fiscal year 2015, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$37,054,620, or 32.0% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers. In
addition, the General Fund had a nonspendable fund balance of $873,260 and
assigned fund balance of $9,952,977.

o The Capital Projects Fund is classified as a major fund. It had a restricted fund
balance of $5,789,022 and a committed fund balance of $2,707,279.

e The County’s total bonds payable decreased by $4,836,869 durtng the current
fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements, which are comprised of the following three components: 1)
Govermnment-wide financial statements; 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the
basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information
which is included in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all County assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
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representing net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or
deteriorating,

The Statement of Activities presents information that indicates how net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this stateinent for sone items that
will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovermtnental revenues {governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the County include general government, judicial and law enforcement,
education and recreation, health and welfare, and maintenance of equipment and
structures.  The business-type activities of the County include an airport and an
entertainment complex.

Component units are included in our basic financial statements and consist of legally
separate entities for which the County is financially accountable and they have
substantially the same board as the County or provide services entirely to the County.
The County’s component unit, Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool,
has been reported as blended with the County as the primary government. For more
detailed information on this component unit refer to Note 1A and Note 13 of the basic
financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be
divided mto three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govermment-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
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balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains 74 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major
governmental funds. Data from other govermmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. An enterprise fund is used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of an airport
and entertainment complex. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The
County uses internal service funds to account for its liability activities, workers
compensation, and the public entity risk pool that provides health insurance benefits.
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the govermnment-
wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. Both of the enterprise funds are considered to be major
funds of the County. The County’s intemal service funds are combined inte a single,
aggregated presenfation in the proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund
data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the govermment. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s
own programs. The County’s only fiduciary funds are 11 agency funds. Agency funds
are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of
results of operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes can be found starting on page 30 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information is presented conceming the County’s General
Fund budgetary schedule. The County adopts an annual budget for this fund. A
budgetary comparison schedule, which includes the original and final ainended budget
and actual figures, has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
Required supplementary information can be found starting on page 69 of this report.
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The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide
information for non-major governmental funds and intemal service funds and are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

Government-Wide Financial Analvsis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $94,019,823
for fiscal year 2015 and $96,211,759 for fiscal year 2014.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2015
Primary Government

Current and other assets
Capital Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Loss on Refunding
Deferred Outflows Related to
Pensions

Total Deferred Qutflows of
Resources

Current and other [iabilities
Long-term liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position:

Net investinent in capital assets
Restricted net position
Unrestricted net position

Total Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Reclassifications Total
$102,112,513 $ 1,165,563 5 - $103,278,076
95,253,769 83,107,097 - 178,360,866
$197,366,282 $ 84272660 5 - $5281,638,942
$ 1,152,975 $ - b - § 1,152,975
13,502,109 247,493 - 13,749,602
$ 14,655,084 3 247493 A - § 14,902,577
$ 12,667,639 $ 913,917 $ - § 13,581,556
187,806,143 1,133,997 - 188,940,140
$200,473,782 § 2047914 $ - $202,521,696
$ 93,814,603 $ 83,107,097 § (39,220,834) $137,700,866
24,695,909 - - 24,695,909
{106,962,928) (634,858) 39,220,834 (68,376,952)
511,547,584 $ 82,472,239 by - $ 94,015,823
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Condensed Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2014
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Reclassifications Total
Current and other assets $ 98,226,987 $ 1,561,890 $ - $ 99,788,877
Capital Assets 87,103,428 84,297,573 - 171,401,001
Total Assets $185,330,415 $ 85,859,463 3 - £271,180,878
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Loss on Refunding $ 1,324,830 A - 3 - 5 1,324,830
Total Deferred Qutflows of
Resources § 1,324,830 5 - 5 - $ 1,3243830
Current and other liabilities § 7,340,425 $ 848,194 b - 3 8,188,619
Long-term: liabilities 129,727,596 234,161 - 129,961,757
Total Liabilities $137.068.021 § 1082355 A - $138,150,376
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assels $ 85,095,478 $ 84,297,573 § (43,072,050) $126,321,001
Restricted net position 28,919,622 - - 28,919,622
Unrestricted net position (64,427,876) 479,535 43,072,050 (20,876,291)
Total Net Position §49,587,224 $ 84,777,108 $ - $134,364,332

The largest portion of the County’s current fiscal year net position (146.4 percent)
reflects its 1nvestments in capital assets (e.g. land, improvements, buildings, equipment,
and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The main use of these capital assets 1s to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  Another portion of the
County’s current fiscal year net position (26.3 percent) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The County’s current fiscal year
net position 1s reduced by (72.7 percent) for the negative unrestricted net position.
Unrestricted net position may be negative when entities incur long-tenm liabilities which
are not offset by corresponding assets or when it covers post-retirement benefits on a pay-
as-you-go basis rather than advance-funding such costs in a trust accouut.

At the end of the fiscal year 2015 and the 2014 fiscal year, the County report positive net
position in two of the three categories as a whole.  The County reported positive
balances in two of the three categories of net position for its governmental activities for
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fiscal year 2015 and fiscal year 2014. Business-type activities had positive balances in
one of the categories of net position for fiscal year 2015 and fiscal year 2014.

The County had a reclassification of $39,220,834 in fiscal year 2015 and $43,072,050 in
in the pror fiscal year to move the debt associated with the construction of Ford Park
from Unrestricted net position to Net investment in capital assets. The capital assets are
reported in the business-type activities and the debt is reported in the governmental
activities. The County’s net position decreased by $2,191,936 during the current fiscal
year. The following table indicates changes in net assets for governmental and business-
type activities:

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Governmental Business-type
Activities Aclivities Total
Revennes:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 21,266,721 hY 6,939,251 b 28,205,972
Operating grants and
contributions 10,935,535 - 10,635,535
Capital grants and contributions 8,711,241 2,442 836G 11,154,080
General revenues:
Taxes - levied for peneral
purposes 76,925,495 - 76,925,495
Taxes - levied for debt service 6,197,358 - 6,197,358
Sales Taxes 24,995,680 - 24,995,680
Investment earnings 468,561 788 469,349
Miscellaneous 26,686 52,260 81,946
Total revenues 149,530,277 9,435,138 158,965,415
Expenses:
Genera!l government 40,203,444 - 40,203,444
Judicial and law enforcement 80,018,632 - 80,018,632
Education and recreation 1,425,539 - 1,425,539
Health and welfare 10,362 461 - 10,362,461
Maintenance - equipment and
structures 14,076,436 - 14,076,436
Interest and charges on long-
term. debt 1,423,776 - 1,423,776
Airport - 5,894,518 5,894,518
Entertainment Complex - 7,752,545 7,752 545
Total expenses 147,510,288 13,647,063 161,157,351
Excess (deficiency) before special
items and transfers 2,019,989 (4,211,925) (2,191,936}
Transfers (2,594,492) 2,554,492 -
Change in net position (574,503) {1,617,433) (2,191,935)
Net position - beginning 49,587,224 84,777,108 134,364,332
Prior period adjustment {37465,137) {687,436) (38,152,573)
Net position -~ beginning - restated 12,122,087 84,089,672 96,211,759
Net position - ending $ 11,547,584 § 82,472,236 $ 94,019,823
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Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Taxes - levied for general
purposes
Taxes - levied for debt service
Sales Taxes
[nvestment eamings
Miscellanecus
Total revenues
Expenses:
General government
Judicial and law enforcement
Education and recreation
Health and welfare
Maintenance - equipment and
structures
Interest and charges on long-
term debt
Airpoit
Entertainment Complex
Total expenses
Excess (deficiency) before special
items and transfers
Transfers
Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Prior period adjustment
Net position - beginning - restated
Net position - ending

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Governmental

Business-type

Actlivities Activities Total
$ 22,334,745 10,091,010 12,425,755
13,417,014 - 13,417,014
4,287,420 231,418 4,518,838
78,592,069 - 78,592,069
6,024,469 - 6,024 469
25,829,624 - 25,829,624
311,546 550 312,096
30,355 52,457 82,812
150,827,242 10,375,435 161,202,677
42933 889 - 42,933,889
82,058,360 - 82,058,360
1,416,537 - 1,416,537
10,570,568 - 10,570,568
14,859,687 - 14,859,687
1,611,661 - 1,611,661
- 6,943,749 6,943,749
- 9,760,675 9,760,675
153,450,702 16,704,424 170,155,126
(2,623,460) (6,328,989 (8,952,449)
(3,470,353) 3,470,353 -
(6,093,813} (2,858,636) (8,952,449
56,297,440 87,635,744 143,933,184
(616,403) - {(616,403)
55,681,037 87,635,744 143,316,78
$£49,587224 84,777,108 134,364,332
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Governmental activities

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2015
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Governmental activities decreased the County’s net position by $574,503.

¢  Due to several recent construction projects, Capital Assets have increased by
about $8.2 million which were partially offset by issuance of a new capital lease
of $1.7 million for the purchase of electronic election system.

» Bonds Payable decreased by about $4.8 million which provided increases to Net
Position.

o These increases just discussed were offset mostly due to the increase in the OPEB
(Other Post Employment Benefits) Obligation of about $13 million.
Commissioners’ Court has decided to continue funding OPEB on the pay-as-you-
go basis. More discussion on OPEB can be found in Note 9 starting on page 57.

For the most part, other changes (increases/decreases) in expenses typically had
corresponding changes in revenues as programs or projects ramp up or wind down.

Business-type activities

Business-type activities decreased the County’s net position by $1,617,433. The largest
area of decline is reduction in Net [nvestment in Capital Assets due to depreciation of
assets. The other area of decline is due to implementation of GASB 68 and recording
Pension Liability. The County continues to look for additional revenues sources as well
as cost saving measures to have these business-type activities self-supporting without
having to rely on transfers from the General Fund to subsidize operations.

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities
Year ended September 30, 2015
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Aclivities
Year £Ended September 30, 2015
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Jefferson County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $76,509,321, a decrease of $1,381,289 in comparison
with the prior year. About 43% of this total amount ($32,564,805) constitutes unassigned
fund balance, which is available for spending at the County’s discretion. The remainder
of fund balance 1s nonspendable, committed, restricted, or assigned to indicate that it 1s
not available for new spending.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $37,054,620, while total
fund balance reached $47,880,857. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may
be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund

14
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expenditures and transfers. Unassigned fund balance represents 32.2 percent of tota!
General Fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balances represents 41.4
percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the County’s General Fund increased by $616,457 during the current
fiscal year. This increase is in most part due to decreases in transfers to other funds.

The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $8,496,301, of which $5,061,920 is
restiicted for maintenance of structures and equipment, $727,102 is restricted for public
interest, and $2,707,279 is committed for construction contracts. The net decrease in
fund balance during the current year in the Capital Projects Fund was $2,708,105. This
decrease was in large part as progression of ongoing projects which funding had already
been provided in prior years.

Proprietary Funds. The County’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information found in the business type activities of the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

The Jack Brooks Regional Airport Fund 1is used to account for the day-to-day operation
of the County airport. As of September 30, 2015, unrestricted net position is $(984,088),
a decrease of $289 808 from the prior year. This decrease is mostly due to decrease in
transfers from the General Fund.

The Ford Park Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operation of Ford Park. As of
September 30, 2015, unrestricted net assets are $349,230, a decrease of $137,149 from
the prior year. This decrease is mostly due to decrease in transfers from the General
Fund.

General Fund Budegetary Highlichts

The total original budget adopted on September 22, 2014 did not have to be amended
during the year. Budget transfers were done during the year to adjust departments as
needed.

During the year actual revenues and transfers were more than budgetary estimates by
$3,926,881. Actual expenditures and transfers were less than budgetary estimates by
$6,771,959. The budget had a projected reduction of $10,082,383 to the fund balance.
The net effect of over-realization of revenues and under-utilization of appropriations
resulted in a positive variance of $10,698,840 thus causing the addition to the existing
fund balance of $616,457 on a budgetary basis.

The largest positive variance of $2,253,964 is due to an increase in Sales Tax revenue.
The area continues to have growth due to several large industrial expansions.
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Revenue from Property Taxes had the largest negative variance of $216,496 due to a
settlement for a contested property tax valuation for one of the large industrial taxpayers.
This settlement resulted in a reduction of about $655 thousand in property tax revenue.

An additional transfer in the amount of $1.2 million was made to Liability Claims
account that was not part of the original budget to provide additional funding for
litigation expenditures.

Many departments achieved savings over the fiscal year mostly due to unfilled staff
positions and moving employees through their salary ranges whereby leaving unspent
funds. The total amount of savings for salary and fringe benefits was about $4.3 million.
Departments also did well in controlling their spending in other budgetary areas.

Budget variances are not expected to impact future services or liquidity.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of September 30, 2015, amounted to $178,360,866
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
improvements, structures, park improvements and facilities, infrastructure, equipment,
vehicles, machinery, other tangible and intangible assets, and construction in progress.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The County had a variety of building improvements, purchases of equipment,
roads and bridges construction, and construction of airport facilities.

e At September 30, 2015, the ending fund balance for all capital projects funds was
$9.99 million.

For further information regarding capital assets, see Note 5.
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Balance Balance
Governmental Activities: September 30, 2015 September 30,2014
Land $ 3,840,787 5 3,840,787
Conslruction in progress 19,564,968 14,283,860
Infrastructure 59,114,166 58,543,801
Buildings & Improvements 102,718,113 98,773,482
Equipment 41,301,248 38,704,189
226,939,282 214,146,119
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (131,685,513) (127,042,691)
Total governmental
activities 3 95,253,769 £ 87,103,428
Bustness-tvpe Aclivities:
Land $ 5,154,600 ) 5,154,600
Construction in progress 2,893,850 753,686
Buildings & Improvements 129,843,264 129,259,814
Equipment 12,335,094 12,399,535
150,226,808 147,567,635
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (67,119.711) {(63,270,062)
Total busmess-type
activities 3 83,107,097 b 84,297,573

Long-Term Debt. At September 30, 2015, the County had a total long-term debt
outstanding of $188,940,140. Refer to Note 7 for further information on the County’s
long-term debt. County officials, citizens, and investors will find the ratio of net bonded
debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita as useful indicators
of the County’s debt position. This information is presented in the statistical section of
this report.

Outstanding at

Qutstanding at September 30, 2014 -
Governmental Activities: September 30, 2015 Restated
Bonds Payable b 44,444 323 $ 49,281,192
Capital leases 1,707,363 -
Claims & Judgments 2,685,623 2,547,790
Compensaled Absences 12,156,652 12,174,444
Pension Liability 47 988,665 46,361,282
OPEB Obligations 78,823,517 65,724,170
Total governmental
activities 3 187,806,143 b 176,088,878
Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absences b 254,368 $ 234,161
Pension Liability 879,629 849,799
Total business-type
activities 3 1,133,997 $ 1,083,960
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The bond rating services of Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s
Ratings services have assigned the County’s long term bond ratings of Aa2 and AA-
respectively.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Commissioner’s Court adopted the County’s 2015-2016 budget on September 21,
2015 for the General fund and debt service funds. The budget was adopted based on
estimated balances that would be available at the end of fiscal year 2015 and estimated
revenues to be received in fiscal year 2016. The total resources for all funds for fiscal
year 2016 are estimated to be $167.9 million. The budget was adopted with estimated
expenditures in the amount of $129.5 million. The 2015-2016 budget forecast utilizing
$9,952,977 of fund balance.

For 2015-2016, the property tax rate will remain at $.365 per $100 of taxable assessed
value and taxable assessed property values are anticipated to decrease just below 2% for
the 2015-2016 budget year.

The average unemployment rate for Jefferson County for September 2015 was 7.8%; this
is a decrease from the prior year rate of 6.6%. The state’s average unemployment rate for

September 2015 was 4.4%.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances
for all those with an interest in the County finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should
be addressed to the County Auditor’s Office, 1149 Pearl St. — 7" Floor, Beaurnont, Texas
77701, :
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S
INVESTMENTS
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
ACCOUNTS RECETVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORIES, Al Cost
PREPAILD ITEMS
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Nel
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECETVABLE, Net
OTHER RECETVABLES, Net
DEPOSITS
CAPITAL ASSETS:

LAND

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS, Net of deprecialion

TOTAL ASSETS s

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES:
DEFERRED LOSS ON BOND REFUNDING 5
DEFERRFED OUTFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOLRCES §

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 8
INTEREST PAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
UNEARNED REVENUE
CUSTOMER DEPOSILS
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
DUE IN MORE THAN ONE YEAR

TOTAL LIABILITIES S

NET POSITION

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 3
RESTRICTED FOR:

DEBT SERVICE

CONSTRUCTION

PUBLIC INTEREST

JUDICAL & LAW ENFORCEMENT

EDUATION & RECREATION

HEALTH & WELFARE

MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT
UNRESTRICTED

TOTAL NET POSITION )

The reclassification is for the debt associated with the construcrion of Ford Park. The assert is accounted for in the Business-nipe

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNAMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVTTIES ACTIVITIES RECLASSIFICATIONS TOTAL
63,451,643 726,766 - 66,178,411
15,115,306 - - 13,115,306
29,202 23 - 25,225
326,004 167,192 - 493,196
10,752,831 100,780 10,833,611
538,522 160,864 - 699,336
391,273 9,938 - 401,211
4,380,003 - - 4,380,003
2,223.235 - - 2,223233
2,328,992 - 2,828,992
75,500 - - 75,500
3,840,787 5,154,600 - 8,595,387
19,964,968 2,893,850 - 22,858,518
71,448,014 75,058,647 - 146,506,661
197.366,282 84,272,660 - 251.638.942
1,152,975 . - 1,152,975
13,502,109 247,493 - 13,749,602
14,655,084 247,493 14,902,577
11,204,348 543,043 - 11,747,391
255,687 . - 255,697
520,093 - - 320095
637,509 217,237 - 904,746
- 153,637 - 133,637
2,417,691 62,601 - £,460,294
179,378,450 1,071,396 - 180.449.844
200,473,782 2,047.914 - 202,521,696
93,814,603 83,107,097 (39,220,834) 137,700,865
1,096,051 - - 1,096,051
50,077 - - 50,077
3,353,863 - - 3,353,863
4,908,014 - 4,908,014
1,468,983 - - 1,468,983
2,427,577 - - 8,427,577
5,391,344 - . 5,391,344
(106,962,928) (634,858) 39,220,834 {68.376,952)
11,547,584 82,472.23% - 94,019,823

activities calumn and the debt is acconnied far in the Gevernmenial Aciivisies coliimn.

The noies lo the linarcial statements are an inlegral part of this slatement,



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JTUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELTARE
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT
AND STRUCTURES
INTEREST AND CHARGES
ON LONG-TERM DEBT
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
AJRPORT
ENTERTAINMENT COMPLEX
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

PROGRAN REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND

EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

§ 40,203,444 $ 4,697,503 b - § -

80,018,632 10,602,406 9,465,689 -

1,425,539 73,649 67 -

10,362,461 411,006 1,003,582 -

14,676,436 5,482,157 466,197 8,711,241

1,423,776 - - -

3 147,510,288 3 21,266,721 5 10,935,535 5 8,711,241

5,894,518 3,493,616 - 2,396,173

7,752,545 3.445,635 - 46,666

§ 13,647,063 $ 6,839,251 § - 5 2,442,639

5 161,157,351 3 28,205,972 ) 10,935,535 S 11,154,080
GENERAL REVENUES

TAXES:

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR GENERAL PURPOSES
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR DEBT SERVICE
SALES TAXES
UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT EARNINGS
MISCELLANEQUS
TRANSFERS
TOTAL GENERAT REVENUE AND TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
NET POSITION - BEGINNING, Restated

NET POSITION - ENDING

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND CHANGES INNET
POSITION

PRIMARY GOYERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

$ (35,505,941) 3 - 3 (35,505,941)
(39,950,537) - (359,950,537)
(1,351,823) - (1,351,823)
(8,947,873) - (8,947,873)

583,159 - 583,159
(1,423,776 - (1,423,776)
s (106,596,791 S - $ (106,596,791)
- {(4,729) (4,729)
- {4,260,244) (4,260,244
S -5 (4,264,971) % (4,264,973)
3 (106,596,790 S {4.264,973) & (110,861,764)
3 76925495  § - $ 76,925,495
6,197,358 - 6,197,358
24,995,680 - 24,993,680

468,361 788 469,349

29,686 52,260 51,946

(2,594,492) 2,594,492 -

$ 106,022,288  § 2,647,540 % 108,669,828
5 (574,303} & (1,617,433)  § (2,191,936)
49,587,224 £4,777,108 134,364,332
(37,465,137 (687,436) {18,152,573)
12,122,087 84,089,672 96,211,75%

5 11,547,584 $ 82,472.239 S 94,015,823




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
CAPITAL KONMAIOR TOTAL
PROJECTS GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL FUND FLNDS FUNDS
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥ 31.906974 8,810,135 22235619 62,952,728
INVESTMENTS 13,113,506 - - 15,115,306
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 133,348 - 163,267 296,615
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 18,988 3,317 7,530 29,895
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 3612248 - 23248 3,635,496
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 7,179,202 296,136 3107123 10,582,461
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 4272106 - 107.897 4,380.003
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECETVABLE, Nel 2,168,468 - 54,767 2,223,235
INVENTORIES, AL Cost 482,768 - 35,754 538,322
PREPAID [TEM 390492 - 781 391.273
TOTAL ASSETS § 65.279.900 9.109 648 25,755,986 100,145,534
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOQURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LLABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5 £,958.897 317,211 1,909.536 11,185 644
COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE 22,527 - - 22,527
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - 1,484,951 1,484.981
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 360 - 519,735 320,095
LNEARNED REVENUE 11.676 - 675,833 687,509
TOTAL LIABILITIES §  8.993.460 317.211 4,590,085 13,900,736
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- PROPERTY TAXES 3 6,240,042 - 148,151 6.388,193
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- INMATE HOUSING 2,165,541 - - 2,165,541
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- GRANTS - 296,136 385.587 1,181,723
TOTAL DEFERRED TNFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 5 3.405.583 266,136 1,033,738 9.735.457
FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR:

INVENTORY S 482,768 - 53,754 338.322

PREPAID ITEMS 390,482 - 781 391,373
RESTRICTED FOR:

DEBT SERVICE - - 1,069,797 1,069,797

CONSTRUCTION - - 50,077 50.077

PUBLIC INTEREST - 727,102 2,570,236 3.297.328

JUDICLAL & LAW ENFORCEMENT - - 4,908,014 4,908,014

EDUCATION & RECREATION - - 1,468,583 1,468,933

HEALTH & WELFARE - - 8,427,577 8,427.577

MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES

& EQUIPMENT - 5,061,920 329,424 5.391,344
COMMITTED FOR:

CONSTRUCTION CONTRALTS - 2,701,279 3.941,806 6,649,085
ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS - - 1,799,539 1,799,539
ASSIGNED FOR ADOPTED BUDGET

UTILIZATION OF FUND BALANCE 5,932,977 - - 9,952,977
UNASSIGNED (DEFICTT) 37,034,620 - (4,485.815) 32.564.805
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 47.880.857 §,496.301 20,132,163 76,509,321

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 65279900 9.109.648 25,755,986 100,145,534

The notes to Lhe Tipancial stalements are an integral par of (us stalement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Total fund balances for govermmental funds

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the slatement of net position
is different because;

Capital assets used in govermmental activities are not financial reseurces and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land

Construction in progress

Infrastrucrure, net of $39,190,806 accumulated depreciation

Buildings, net of $66,666,395 accuwmulated depreciation

Equipiment, net of $28.828,312 accumulaied depreciation

Total capital assets

Long-tenn assels are nol recognized in the current period and accordingly
are not reporied as fund assels. Balances as of Seplember 30, 2015 were:

Accrued inlerest receivable

Long-term liabilities applicable to Jefferson County's aclivities are not

due and payable in the current period and aceordingly are oot reporied as fund
liabilites, Interest on long-term debt is not aecrued in governmental funds, but
rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.  All liabilities - both current
and long~enn are reported in the Statement of Net Position.

Balances as of Septeinber 30, 2013 were:

Accrued interest on bonds and loans
Bonds payable

OPEB Cbligations

Pension Liability

Capital leases

Compensaled absences

Pensions - Contributions afier 12/31/2014
Pensions - Economic/demographic (gains) or losses
Pensions - Invesunent (gains) or losses
Gain/Loss on Refunding Bonds
Premium/Diseounts on Bonds

[nternal scrvice funds are used by the County. The assets and babilities
of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in the
Staternent of Ne1 Position. Inlernal service fund nel position are:

Some of the County's receivables are elassified as long-1erm and therefore

are not reported in the funds. Receivable reported net of $2,243,357 allowanee
for uncollectible accounts.

Some of the County's revenues will be collecled afier year-end bus are ol
available soon enough (o pay for the eurrent period's expenditures and

therefore are reported as available resources in the funds.

Total net position of governunental aclivilies

The potes o he financial stalements are an integral part of his SialemenL
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3,840,787
19,964,968
19,023,360
39,051,718

12.472.936

(1.277)

(255,687)
(40,660,000)
(78,823,517)
(47,988,665)
(1,707,363)
{12,134,125)
9,259,603
3,480,069
762,347
1,152,975

(3,784.323)

3

$

76,509,321

95,253,769

(1,277

(170,698,596)

(2.080,082)

2,828,992

9.735.457

5 11.547.584



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENULS, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

CAPITAL NONNAJOR TOTAL
PROJECTS GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNAMENTAL
GENCRAL FUND FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES § 76,668,604 - 6,182,154 82,850,758
SALES TANES 23,703,564 - 1,291,716 24,995,630
FEES 9,473,369 . 4,864,247 14,337,616
LICENSES 459,198 - . 459,198
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,757,619 998,739 13,512,006 16,668,364
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 1974325 351,658 2,528,43 4,754 414
FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,927,212 . 193,648 2,120,860
INTEREST 331,955 45,173 101,635 478,763
MISCELLANEOUS 29495 - . 29,485
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 375 2.500 54,967 57,842
TOTAL REVENUES S 116,326,116 1,298,070 29,128,804 146,732,990
ENPENDITURES:
CURRENT
GENERAL GOVERNMENT § 23352652 . 434,275 23,786,927
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 66,182,403 . 14,364,433 80,546,836
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 382440 . 1,057,539 1,439,979
HEALTH AND WELFARE 10,123,450 - 356,068 10,479,518
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
AND EQUIPMENT 12,137,612 . 40,593 12,178,205
CAPITAL OUTLAY - 5,595 294 7,233,879 12,829,173
DEST SERVICE
PRINCIPAL - - 4,420,000 4,420,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION - - 1,695,044 1,695,044
TOTAL ENPENDITURES $ 112,178,357 5,595,294 29,601,831 147,375,682
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3 4,147,559 (4,297,224) {473,027) (622,692)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS TN 5 . 89,478 1,509,239 1,598,717
TRANSFERS OUT {3.531,102) (207,722 (325,853) {4,064,677)
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION - 1,707,363 - 1,707,363
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES) §  (5.531,102) 1,589,119 1,183,386 {758,597)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 616457  (2.708,105) 710.359 (1.381,289)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING S 47264400 11204406 19,383,474 77,852,280
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - - 38,330 38,330
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (Restated) 5 47264400  11.204,406 19.421.804 77,890,610
FUND BALANCES, ENDING § 47,380,857 2,496,301 20,132,163 76,509.321

The notes to the financial stalements are an inlegral part of this staternent.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances - 1otal governmental funds 5 (1,381,28%)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as ¢xpepditures, Howcever, m the statemnent of activives
the cost of these assels is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation

expense.
Capital Expenditures $ 14249314
Capilal asset donalions ro Business type activities {128,532)
Net adjustment for sale or disposal of capital assels (33,848)
Depreciation Expense (5.936,393)

Net adjustinent 8,150,341

Deht proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the
change in fund balanee. In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increases long-lcrm
liabilitics and does not affect the Staternent of Activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the Staement of Net Posstion.

Debt issucd:
Capital Lease $ {1,707363)
Repayments:
To puying agent for bond principal 4,420,000
Net adjustment 2,712,637

Under the modified accrua! basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, cxpenditures are

not recognized for ransactions that are not normally paid with expendable available inancial resources.
In the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the acerual basis, expenses and

liabilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition, mterest on
long-term debt is oot recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather as

it accrues. The adjustizent combines the nel changes of nine balaoces.

Compensated absences 3 {8,380)
OPEB Obligations {13.099,347)
Pension Liability (1,617 ,383)
Pensions - Economic/demnographic (gains) or losses 3,480,069
Pensions - [nvesiment (2ains) of losses 762,347
Pensions - Difference in Contributions 401,878
Amortzatioo of bond premium 416,869
Amortization of refunding difference (171,855)
Accrued interest on debt 26,254
Cowmbined adjustinent (9,819,548)

Internal service funds are used by the County. The nel chaoge in position of the internal service funds
are reporied with governmental activilies. (2,336,371

Some of the County's receivables are classified as long-term and therefore the net of revenue and
bad debt expense associated with theses receivables are not reporied in the funds. L11.675

Because soine revenues will nol be collected for several months after the County's fisca) year end,
they do not provide currenl financial resources and they are not reported as revenues in the funds. 1,988,054

Total change in nert position of governmenta) activities ) (574.503)

The nates to the financial stucments are an iniegral pan ef this statement,
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
PREPAID ITEMS
TNVENTORY, AL Cost
DEPOSITS
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
CAPITAL ASSETS:
LAND
CONSTRUCTION [N PROGRESS
OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF
DEPRECIATION
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOLRCES:
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOLRCES

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
CLAIMS LIABILITY
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
CURRENT PORTION - COMPENSATED ABSENCES
UNEARNED REVENUE
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
TOTAL CURRENT LTABILITIES
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
NONCURRENT PORTION - COMPENSATED ABSENCES
FENSION LIABILITY
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION:

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPTTAL ASSETS
UNRESTRICTED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JACK
BROOCKS INTERNAL
REGIONAL SERVICE
AIRPORT FORD PARK . TOTAL FUNDS
20,773 705,993 726,766 2,498,917
14716 132,476 167,192 29,389
- 23 23 584
100,780 - 100,780 170,370
77 9,861 9,938 ;
111,031 49,833 160,864 .
- ; . 75.500
267377 898,186 1,165,563 2,774,750
3,024815 2,129,785 5,154,600 -
2,893.850 - 2,393,850 -
24,736,773 50,321,874 75,058,647 -
30,655.438 52451659 83107097 -
30,922,815 53,349,845 $4.272.660 2,774,760
247493 - 247,493 -
247493 - 247,493 -
290,929 252,114 543,043 18,704
. - . 2,635,623
. - - 2,150,515
23,532 39,069 62,601 -
36,736 180,501 217,237 -
76,363 77,272 153,637 .
427,562 548,956 976,518 4,854,842
191,767 - 191,767 .
879,629 - 879,629 -
1,071,396 - 1,071,396 ;
1,498,958 548,956 2,047,914 4,854,842
30,655,438 52,451,659 83,107,097 .
(984.088) 349,230 (634.858) (2.080,082)
29,671,350 52.800.889 $2,472.239 (2,080,087)

TOTAL NET POSITION

The notes o Bnaucial slatements are an integral part ol this stalement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

LNTERPRISE FUNDS

JACK

BROOKRS [NTERNAL
REGIONAL SERVICE
AIRPORT FORD PARK TOTAL FUNDS
OPERATING REVENLUES:
CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 3,493,616 3,445,635 6,939,251 16,985,217
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS - - - 2,156,897
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 3,493,616 3,443,635 6,939,251 19,142,114
OPERATING EXPENSES:
SALARIES & BENEFTTS $ 1,688,707 1,468,411 3,157,118 -
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 77,520 118,065 195,585 .
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 123,446 353,834 477,280 -
UTILITIES 205,619 896,190 1,101,809 -
COST OF GOODS SOLD 1,792,341 1,710,543 3,502,884 -
MISCELLANEOUS 429,409 106,073 535482
ADMINISTRATIVE - 692,343 692,345 1,782,985
INCURRED & ESTIMATED CLAINMS - - - 20,224,953
DEPRECIATION 1,577476 2.407,084 3,884,560
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 5,894,518 7,752,545 13,647,063 22,007,938
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ (2,400,900 {4,306,910) (6,707,812) ({2,865,824)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
INTEREST REVENUE % 737 51 788 4,691
GAINALOSS) ON SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS 139 - 139 -
REFUNDS AND RECOVERIES 52,121 - 52,121 524,760
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES $ 52,997 5t 53.048 529451
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (2,347,905 (4,306,859 (6,654,764) (2,336,373)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,396,173 175,198 2,571,371
TRANSFER [N 750,000 1,715,960 2,465,960 -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 5 798,268 (2,415,701 (1,617,433) (2,336,373)
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 29,560,518 55,216,590 84,777,108 256,291
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT {687.436) - (687 .436) -
NET POSITION, BLGINNING - Restated $ 28,873,082 55,216,590 84,089,672 256,291
NET POSITION, ENDING $ 29,671,350 52,800,889 82,472,239 {2.080,082)

The notes Lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FFOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:

RECEIPTS FROM CUSTOMERS AND USERS

RECEIPTS FROM EMPLOYEES

PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES

INTERNAL ACTIVITY-RECEPTS(PAYMENTS)} FROM
(TO) OTHER FUNDS

CLAIMS PAIL

OTHER RECEFTS

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TRANSFERS {TO) FROM OTHER FUDS

NET CASH PROVIDED{USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

CAPITAL GRANTS FROM FEDERAL ENTITIES

ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF CAPITAL ASSETS

PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS

NET CASH PROVIDED{USED] BY CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITICS

CASH FLOWS FROM [INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
RECEIFTS OF TNTEREST

WET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)} IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LQSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)
ADTUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPRECIATION
OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
CHANGES [N ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
PREPAID ITEMS
INVENTORY
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
CLAIMS LIABILITY
OTHER LIABILITIES

NET CASH PROVIBED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NON-CASH OPERATING, CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING, AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The notes 1o the [inancial stalements are an iniegral part of this statement.

ENTERPIISE FUNDS

JACK
BROOKS INTERNAL
REGIONAL SERVICE
ARPORT FORD PARK TOTAL FUNDS
S 3,515,885 3,430,169 6,946,054 1615,324
- - - 2,158.010
(2474967)  (3903,569)  (6,37§,536) (1,780,542)
(1,728801)  {1463410)  (3.192211) -
B ) - 17,568,110
- B . (20,087,120}
16,113 - 16.113 524.909
S (671770)  {1936810)  (2.608.580) {1.109)
$ 750,000 1.715.960 2.465.960 -
§ 750,000 1.7135.960 2 465,960 -
S 2426966 . 2,426,966 -
(2,685,695) (2,683,693 -
7.663 - 7.663 N
§ (251,066 - (251,066) .
743 35 778 4,607
5 743 33 778 4607
S (172,093) (220,815 {392,908) 3498
192,866 926,808 1,119,674 2495419
$ 20,773 705,593 726.766 2498917
$ (2,400502)  (4306510)  (6,707.812) (2.865.824)
1,577,476 2,407,084 3.984.360 .
52,121 . 52,121 324,760
27.582 (71,157) {43,575) 1,262
(36,008} - (36.00%) 47,902
- {6.947) (6,947} -
77.231 {18,065) 59,166
(85,130) - (85,130) -
. 34,617 34,617 -
76,137 (8,453) 67,684 2,443
. R . 137,833
39.723 33,021 72,744 -
S (670770} (19368100  (2.508,530) (1109
5 - 175,198 175.198
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

AGENCY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
OTHER PAYABLES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

The notes 1o the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement.

TOTALS

15,891,776
6,060

30851

16,290,687

12,427,300
838,097

3,025,290

b 16,290,687



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas (“County”) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental and financial reporting principles. The most significant accounting and
reporting policies of the County are described in the following notes to the financial statements.

A. Reporting Entity

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. The County is
govermned by Commissioners’ Court, composed of four County Commissioners and the County
Judge, all of whom are elected officials.

The County provides a vast array of services, which include public safety, administration of justice,
health and human services, recreation services, public improvements, and general administration.

As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the County
(the primary government) and its component units in conformity with GASB Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity (“GASB 14), GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units (“*GASB 397), and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, (“GASB 617).

In accordance with these standards, a financial reporting entity consists of the primary government
and its components units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the County are financially accountable, or the relationship to the County is such that
exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleadmg or incomplete. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County’s operations,
and so data from these units are combined with data of the County.

The criteria used to determine whether an organization is a component unit of the County and
whether it is a discretely or a blended component unit includes: financial accountability of Jefferson
County for the component unit, appointment of a voting majority, ability to impose the County’s will
on the component unit, fiscal dependency criterion, whether there is a financial benefit to or burden
to the County or if operational respensibility for the component unit rests with management of the
County, and whether services are provided entirely or almost entirely to the primary government.

Blended Component Units:

For financial reporting purposes, the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool (The
Pool) 1s included in the operations and activities of the County as a blended component unit. The
Pool is a public entity risk pool (see Note 13), which the County is the sponsor government. The
Pool provides services almost entirely to the County. The Pool is accounted for as an internal service
fund.
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Excluded from the reporting entity;

The following agencies were considered in the determination of component units of the County’s
financial reporting entity. It was detenmnined that these entities should notbe included as component
units of the primary government: Jefferson County Navigation District, Drainage District #3,
Dratnage District #6, Drainage District #7, Foreign Trade Zone, Pleasure Island Park Board,
Jefferson County Health Facilities Development Corporation, Jefferson County Housing Finance
Corporation, Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), and Jefferson County Industrial
Development Corporation.

B. Implementation of New Standards

In the current year the County implemented the following new standards:

GASB Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans (““GASB 677), replaces the
requirements of Statemnent No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and Statement No, 50, Pension Disclosures, as they
relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or similar arrangements meeting certain
criteria. GASB 67 enhances note disclosures and RSI for both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. The plan, Texas County and District Retirement System, implemented GASB 67.

GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (“GASB 687), replaces the
requiremments of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental
Employers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governiments that provide
pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet certam
criteria. Implementation of GASB 68 is reflected in the County’s financial statements.

GASB Statement 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations (“GASB
69™), requires disclosures to be made about goverrunent combinations and disposals of government
operations to enable financial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those
transactions. Implementation of GASB 69 did not have an impact on the County’s reporting
disclosures.

GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Dates, (“GASB 71", amends GASB 68. Implementation of GASB 71 is reflected m the County’s
financial statements.

C. Financial Statement Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Govermnment-wide Statements

Government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. These statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
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removed from these statements. However, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated
in the process of consohidation. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is financially
accountable.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, revenues are recorded
when eamed and expenses are recorded at the tirne liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues w the year for which they are levied. Fines
and forfeitures are recognized when they have been assessed and adjudicated and earned. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the County’s
programs are offset by those programs’ revenues. Program revenues include; 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by the program and; 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational and/or capital requirements of a particular program. Program revenues include those
generated from General Government, Judicial and Law Enforcement, Education and Recreation,
Health and Welfare, Contract Services, and Maintenance of Equipment and Structures. Taxes and
other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Miscellaneous general revenues consist of non-program specific contributions.
Agency funds are excluded in the govermment-wide presentation of the financial statements.

Fund-level Statements

All governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the medified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become
both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers property taxes and other
revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded
when therelated fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on governmental long-term debt are
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service
fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Grant and entitlement revenues are also
susceptible to accrual. Encumbrances are used during the year and any remaining encumbrances are
liquidated at fiscal year end. These funds are accounted for on a spending “‘financial flow”™
measurement focus. This means that only current assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources,
and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net
position) is considered a measure of “available spendable resources.” Governmental fund operating
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statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and
other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of
sources and uses of “available spendable resources™ during a period.

All proprietary funds, including the enterprise funds and internal service funds, and fiduciary funds,
including agency funds, are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned, and expenses when they are incurred. Claims incurred but not reported are
included in payables and expenses. These funds are accounted for using a cost of service or “capital
maintenance” measurement focus. This means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-
current) associated with their activity are inctuded in the funds’ balance sheets. The Agency funds
are custodial in nature and involve no measurement of results of operations.

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based on the purpose for wluch they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled.

Funds are classified into three categories: Governmental, Proprietary, and Fiduciary. The County
reports the following major funds:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS: Used to account for all or most of a government’s general activity.
General Fund - used to account for the general operatious of the County.

Capital Projects Fund — used to account for all other capital projects of the County for which a
separate fund has not been established.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: Used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to
those in the private sector, where the determination of net income is appropmate for sound financial

administration.

Jack Brooks Regional Airport —used to account for the day-to-day operation of the County airport.
These facilities are financed primarily through user charges.

Ford Park —used to account for the day-to-day operation of Ford Park. These facilities are financed
primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:
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Internal Service Funds -- used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
department or agency of the County to other County departments or agencies on a cost
reimbursement basis. The County reports three internal service fund: 1) Liability Insurance — to
account for the County’s contribution and payment for liability claims, 2) Workers® Compensation—
to account for County’s contribution and payment for workers’ compensation claims, and 3)
Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool - to account for the County’s Public Entity
Risk Pool, which provides group health insurance programs for member governments including
comprehensive major medical and dental care.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: Used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
therefore cannot be used to support the government’s own prograins.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent on behalf of a third
party. The County reports eleven agency funds held for various third parties outside the primary
government: Treasurer Maintained Fund, County Clerk Fund, District Clerk Fund, Shenff’s Fund,
Justice of the Peace Fund, Tax Assessor/Collector Fund, District Attorney’s Seizure Fund,
Community Supervision Trust Fund, Juvenile Probation Trust Fund, Flexible Spending, and
Women’s Center Trust Fund.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nos-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing goods in connection
with the proprietary fund’s principal operations. The principal operating revenues of the Jack Brooks
Regional Airport and Ford Park are user fees. Operating revenues in the Internal Service Funds
consist primarily of charges to the various County departments. Operating expenses in the enterprise
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, incurred
and estimated claims, salaries & benefits, materials and supplies, maintenance and repairs, utilities,
miscellaneous, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these
definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources to the extent they are needed.

D. Budgets

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

o Department annual budget requests are submitted by the Department or Agency Head to

the County Auditor’s office during the third quarter of the fiscal year for the upcoming
fiscal year to begin October 1.
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o

The County Auditor’s office prepares an estunate of available resources for the upcoming
fiscal year.

The County Auditor’s office prepares the proposed annual operating budget to be
presented to the Commissioners’ Court for their consideration. The budget represents the
financial plan for the new fiscal year.

Public hearings are held en the proposed budget.

The Commissioners’ Court must adopt an annual operating budget by a majority vote of
the Commissioners’ Court before October 1. The adopted budget must be balanced; that
is, available resources must be sufficient to support annual appropriations.

The departiment is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners’ Court approval
is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may not increase
the total budget.

The Comumissioners’ Court may approve expenditures as an amendment to the budget in
an emergency situation that could not have been foreseen at the time the original budget
was approved.

Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and Debt Service Funds.
Budgets for Grant Funds are established pursuant to grant awards and budgets for Capital
Projects are established on a project basis.

Appropriations lapse at year-end for all budgeted funds.

Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP.

E. Deposits and Investments

The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
certificates of deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three inonths or less
from the date of acquisition.

State statute authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury aud Federal
Agencies, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, Bankers’ acceptances, money market mutual
funds, and direct obligations of the State of Texas.

[nvestments for the County are stated at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices with the
difference between the purchase price and market price being recorded as earnings on investments.
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F. Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed. All encumbrauces are liquidated at fiscal year end.

G. Receivables and Payables

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January | prior to September 30 and become due
October 1, 2014 and past due after January 31, 2015. Accordingly, receivables and revenues for
property taxes are reflected on the government-wide statement based on the full accrual method of
accounting. Property tax receivables for prior year’s levy are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible.

Receivables from other governments include amount due from grantors for approved grants for
specific programs and reimbursements for services performed by the County. Program grants are
recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements established by the
provider have been met.

Reimbursements for services performed are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are
earmed in the government-wide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by court action and
billable services for certain contracts. Revenues received in advance of the costs being incurred are
recorded as unearned revenuein the fund statements. Receivables are shown net ofan allowance for
uncollectible.

Lending or borrowing between funds is reflected as “due to” or “due from™ (current portion) or
“advances to/from other funds™ (non-current). Advances between funds, as reported in the fund
financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds
to indicate that they are not available for appropnation and are not expendable available financial
resources. Interfund activity reflected in “due to” or “due from” is eliminated on the government-
wide statements.

H. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the County has many transactions between funds. The
accompanying fund level financial statements reflect as transfers the resources provided and the
expenditures used to provide services, construct assets, and meet debt service requirements. The
effect of interfund activity hasbeen eliminated m the Government-Wide financial statements, except
for transactions between governmental and business-type activities.
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1. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the “first-in/first-out™ method.
Reported inventories in the governmental funds are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates
they are unavailable for appropriations even though they are a component of net current assets.
Inventory policy on government-wide statements is consistent with fund statements.

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and in the fund financial
statements are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates they are unavailable for
appropriations even though they are a component of net current assets.

The cost of governmental fund type inventories and prepaid items are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when they are purchased (consunption method).

J. Capital Assets and Infrastructure

Capital assets include: land, land improvements, buildings and building improvements, park
improvements and facilities, equipment, machinery, vehicles, other tangible and intangible assets,
and infrastructure that are used in the County’s operations and benefits more than a single fiscal year.
Infrastructure assets are long-lived assets that are generally stationary in nature and can typically be
preserved for a significantly greater number of years than other capital assets. Infrastructure assets of
the County include reads and bridges.

Capital assets of the County are defined as assets with individual costs of $106,000 or more and
estimated useful lives in excess of one year. All capital assets are stated at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. Donated capital assets are stated at their
estimated fair value on the date donated.

Tt is the County’s policy not to capitalize interest on construction for capital assets reported in the
governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are depreciated in the government-wide financial statements using the straight-line
method over the following useful lives:
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Asset Years
Runways 20-35
Buildings 40
Building Improvements 15-25
Equipment ‘ 3-7
Machinery 15
Vehicles 4-15
Other tangible assets 7-10
Computer software 3-5
Infrastructure:

Bridges 25
Roads 40

K. Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensatory leave, vacation and sick leave that have matured (reimbursable leave
still outstanding following an employee’s resignation or retirernent) are reported as expenditures in
the respective governmental funds. Accumulated compensated absences that have not matured are
reported as long-term liabilities in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
Statement of Net Position. The majority of these have typically been liquidated from the General
Fund in previous years. Accumulated compensated absences of Proprietary Funds are recorded as an
expense and liability in the respective fund and the business-type activities column of the
government-wide Statement of Activities as the benefit accrues for the employee.

Employees are allowed to accrue 13 days of sick leave per year. Sick leave benefits are recognized
as expenditures as they are used by the employees. Employees may accumulate up to 1,440 hours of
sick leave. For employees with 8 years of service and hired prior to October 1, 2002, unused sick
leave benefits are paid at 50% at termination. For employees with 8 years of service and hired after
October 1, 2002, unused sick leave benefits are paid at 10% at termination.

Employees with more than one year of service accrue from two to five weeks vacation per year,
depending on years of service. Unused vacation benefits lapse on March 15 for the previous
calendar year. Upon termination from County employment, an employee shall be entitled to payment
for total accrued but unused hours of vacation.

Non-exeinpt employees earn compensatory time at one and one-half times their full rate of pay times
the excess of 40 hours per week worked. The compensatory time balance for non-exempt employees
may not exceed 80 hours except for Law enforceinent employees, which may accumulate up to 480
hours. Hours in excess of the maximum must be paid to the non-exempt employee at the rate of one
and a half times the regular rate. Upon termination, non-exempt employees will be paid for
compensatory time at their wage rate at time of termination. Compensatory time 1s carried forward
indefinitely.
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L. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations arereported as liabilities in the applicable
govermmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financial sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

M. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County has two
items that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is deferred loss on refunding bonds reported in
the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred loss on refunding bonds results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second is deferred
inflows related to pensions

In addition to liabilities in the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has only one type of
itemn, which arises only under 2 modified accrual basis of accounting, which qualifies for reporting in
this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable, 1s reported only in the governimental funds balance
sheet. The governmental funds report unavatlable revenues from property taxes and grants. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become
available.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expenses, information about the Fiduciary Net
Position of the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) and additions to/deductions
from TCDRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have been deterinined on the same basis as they are reported
by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are
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recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefits terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

(). Net Position and Fund Balances

Net Position Classifications

Net positionrepresents the difference between assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources, and
liabilities.

Net position in the proprietary fund financial statements and the government-wide financial
statements are classified in three categories: 1) Net investment in capital assets, 2) Restricted net
position, and 3) Unrestricted net position.

In the proprietary fund financial statements and in the government-wide financial statements,
restricted net position is reported for amounts that are externally restricted by 1) creditors (eg. bond
covenants), grantors, contributions, or laws and regulations of other governments, or 2) law through
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Fund Balance Classification

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that
comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be
spent. The classifications used in the governmental fun financial statements are as follows:

e Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. Nonspendable items are not expected to be converted to cash or not expected to be
converted to cash within the next year.

e Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on
the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or
laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

e Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by court resolution of the Commissioners’ Court, the
County’s highest level of decision making authority. These amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the Commissioners’ Court removes or changes the specified use by
taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially committed.
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This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

o Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to
be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. When 1t is
appropriate for fund balance to be assigned, the Commissioners’ Court retains the
responsibility to assign funds. Assigniments may occur subsequent to fiscal year end.

e Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balances for the General Fund.
The unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other
governimental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts.

When expenditure i1s incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance 1s
available, the County considers restricted fund to have been spent first. When expenditure 1s
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally
unassigned.

P. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted)
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Q. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at
the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

The County had the following investments as of September 30, 2015:

Weighted Average

Fair Value Maturity (Davys)
U.S. Agency Securities 514,115,593 996
Money Market Account 7,713 30
Certificates of Deposits 892.000 633
Total $15.115.306 972
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Interest Rate Risk — Fair value fluctuates with interest rates and increasing rates may cause fair
value to decline below cost. In compliance with the County’s Investment Policy, the County
minimized interest rate risk by limiting the weighted average maturity of the portfolio to 1,096
days with a stated final maturity date not to exceed 3 years from the date of purchase. In
addition, the portfolio is structured so that securities mature to meet cash flow requirements,
thereby avoiding the need to sell securities prior to maturity and below the original cost.

Credit Risk — In compliance with the County’s investment policy, as of September 30, 2015, all
of the County’s purchased investments in U.S. Agency Securities were rated AA+ and Aaa by
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s respectively.

Concentration Risk — The County’s investment policy is to diversify its portfolio to eliminate the
risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or
a specific class of investment. As of September 30, 2015, the County had one investment that
was with Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), and six investments that were with Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC).

Custodial credit risk - deposits — In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the County’s deposits may not be retumed to it. The County’s investment policy is to have
all checking accounts placed at the County Depository Bank under a depository coutract. The
$81,462,467 bank balance and the Money Market account were covered by federal depository
insurance or collateralized with securities held by the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company.
All of the certificates of deposits are covered by federal depository insurance.

Note 3 - Property Taxes and Other Receivables

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on October
1 and payable by January 31 of the following year. The County bills and collects its own property
taxes and it also bills and collects taxes for Jefferson County Navigation District, Jefferson County
Drainage District #3, #6, and #7, Port of Beaumnont, Port of Port Arthur, Water District #10,
Nederland Independent School District, Northwest Forest Municipal Utility District, Emergency
Services District #2, Trinity Bay Conservation District, Port of Sabine Pass, Sabine Pass Independent
School District, Port Arthur Independent School District, City of Port Arthur, Hamshire Fannett
Independent School District, Port Neches-Groves Independent School District, Beaumont
Independent School District, City of Beaumont, City of Groves, City of Nederland, City of Port
Neches, City of Bevil Oaks, Emergency Service District #1, Emergency Service District #3, and the
Emergency Service District #4. Collections of these taxes and remittance of them to the various
districts are accounted for in the Tax Assessor - Collector Agency Fund. The County is permitted by
the State Constitution to levy taxesup to $.80 per $100 of assessed valuation for general government
services and the payment of principal and interest on Long-Term Debt. In addition to its taxes
subject to the $.80 tax limitation, the County's voters have authorized the levy of a special tax of $.15
per $100 assessed valuation solely for road maintenance expenses. The County is also authorized by
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the voters to levy the Farm to Market and Lateral Road Tax of $.30 per $100 of assessed value for
the purpose of maintaining roads and bridges.

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the combined tax rate to finance general government
services and the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt was $.365.

On February 1 of the following calendar year the tax bill becomes delinquent and penalty and interest
is assessed by the County. The County Commissioners issue a tax levy for the County's General and
Debt Service Funds. The levy and collections are restricted to the funds they are allocated for. The
delinquent tax receivables and penalty and interest receivables represent the past thirty years of
uncollected tax levies. The allowance for uncollectible was set at thirty percent of the gross tax
receivable and sixty percent on penalty and interest as of September 30, 2015. The allowance has
been recorded for property taxes and Penalty and Interest, which are estimated to be uncollectible as
required by generally accepted accounting.

Property tax recetvables 0f'$4,380,003 as of September 30, 2015 are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectible taxes of $1,877,144.

Penalty and Interest receivables of $2,223,235 as of September 30, 2015 are reported net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts of $3,334,853.

Receivables as of September 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Jack
Capital Brooks Internal
Projects Non Major Regional Service Agency
General Fund Funds Adrpont Ford Park Funds Funds Total
Recejvables:
Accounts § 101,893 S - S 157981 $ 34310 S$134513 5 29389 S 6,060 5§ 464,146
Employee 31,435 - 5,286 528 - - - 37,269
Taxes 6,103,008 - 154,139 - - - - 6,257,147
Penalty &
[nterest 5,421,170 - 136,918 - - - - 5,558,088
[nter-
sovernmental 7,179,202 296,136 3,107,123 100.780 - 170.37¢ 392,851 11,246.462
Gross
Receivables $ 18,836,728 $ 296,136 53,361,447 § 135618 $134513 5199759  §398,91! $23.563,112
Less: Allowance
for
Uncollectibles 5,083,604 - 128,393 122 2037 - - 5,214,136
Net 1otal
receivables $ 13,753,124 5 296.136 $ 3,433,054 $ 133495 % 132,476 $ 199 739 5 398,911 S 18,348 936
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As of September, 30, 2015, the various components of uncamed revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows:

Unearned
Advanced Funding (General Fund) $ 11,676
Advanced Funding (Non-major Special Revenue Funds) 675,833
Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 687,509

Note 4 — Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

In the fund financial statements, interfund balances are the result of normal transactions between
funds and will be liquidated in the subsequent fiscal year. Balances between individual
govemmental funds and between governmental funds and internal services funds are eliminated in
the government-wide financial statements.

The composition of interfund balances as of Septernber 30, 2015, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Amount
General Fund Noomajor governmental funds $1,461,733
Internal Service funds 2,150,515
Nonmajor governmental
funds Nonmajor governmental funds 23248
Total $ 3,635,496

All of the due to/from transactions are routine in pature.
The following is a summary of the County’s transfers for the year ended September 30, 2015:

Transfers Quit:

Capital Nonmajor

General Fund Project Fund Governmenltal Total
Transfers In:
General $ - ) - g - )
Capital Projects Fund 80478 - - 89,478
Nonmajor Funds 975,004 207.722 325,853 1,509,239
Jack Brooks Regional Alirport 750,000 - - 750,000
Ford Park 1.713.960 - - 1,715,960

$  3,531.102 §  207.722 S 323,853 S 4.064.677
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Transfers in the amount of $§750,000 from the General Fund to the Jack Brooks Regional Airport
were to subsidize operations at the airport. Transfers in the amount of $1,715,960 to Ford Park were
to subsidize operations of the complex. All other transfers are routine in nature such as grant
matches, ongoing capital projects, and residual fund balance transfers for close out of funds.

Transfers in the amount of $128,532 for Ford Park were made between governmental activities and
business-type activities for capital assets purchases which were donated to business-type activities in
the government wide statements.

Note 5 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Land
Constroction work in progress

Total capital assets not depreciated

Infrastmcrure
Buildings & Lmprovements
Equipment

Total capital assets depreciated

Less aceumnulated depreciation for:
[nfrastructure

Buildinas & Linprovements
Equipinent

Towal accurnulated depreciation

Total capilal assels depreciated, net

Governmental actvilies capilal assels. nel

Balance October 1,

Balance

2014 Additions Deletions Transler September 30, 2015

$ 3.840,787 $ ) -8 $ 3,840,787
14.283,860 10,038,686 (4,357,578) 19.964.968

$ 18,124,647 S 10,038.686 S $  (4,357.578) S 23,805,755
58,343,801 - 570,365 39,114,166
98,773,482 157,418 3,787,213 102,718,113
38,704,159 3,924.478 (1,327,419) 41,301.248

$ 196,021,472 S 4,081,896 ${1,327419)  § 4.357,578 S 203,133,527
(37.908.,280) (1,282,526} - (39,190,806}
(61,825,889) (1,840,506) (63,666,395)
(27,308.522) {2.813,361) 1.293.571 (28.828.312)

§ (127.042.691) S (5,936,393) S 1293571 S - 5 {131,6385,511)
5 68,978,781 S (1,854.497) 5 (33.848) § 4337578 by 71,448,014
5 §7.103.428 S 8,184,189 $§ (33848 S ) 95,253,769
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Balance October 1,

Balance

2014 Additions Dicletions Transler September 30, 2015
Business-type Activities:
Land ) 5,154,600 $ - 5 - 5 5,154,600
Construction work in progress 753,686 2,635,478 - {495.314) 2,893,850
Total capital assets not depreciated 5 5,908,286 § 2635473 - % {455,314} 5 §,048,450
Buildings & lmprovermecols 129,259,814 142,132 (53,996) 495314 129,843,264
Equipment 12,399,535 23,999 (88,440) - 12,335,094
Total eapital assets depreciated h) 141,659,349 b 166,131 (142,436) % 495,314 5 142,178,358
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & [mprovemenits (55,211,899) (3,288,032) 49,180 - (58,450,751
Equipment {8,058,163) (696,528) 85,731 - (8,668,960)
Total accumulated depreciation 3 (63,270,062) $ (3,984.560) 134,911 $ - B (67,119.711)
Tola) capital assets depreciated, net S 78,389,287 § (3,818,429 (7,523) S 495,314 § 75,058,647
Business-typc activities eapilal assets, net 5 84,297,373 S (1.182.951) {7,525) 3 - 3 83,107,097

Depreciation expense was charged to the programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmentail activities:

General Government

Judicial & Law Enforcement

Health & Welfare
Maintenance - Equipment & Structures

Total depreciation expense - governmental
aclivities

Business-type activities:

Southeast Texas Regional Airport

Fard Park

Tatal depreciation expense - business-type
activities
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2,601,147
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_ 2,664,137

_95,996.393
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Note 6 - Operating Leases

County as Lessor

The County has entered into various operating leases of County-owned property to others as
described below:

The County’s airport conducts a major part of its operations from leased facilities, which
include office and parking lot spaces for car rental agencies, terminal space for a travel
agency and advertising agency, and hanger space. All leases are classified as operating
leases. The rental payments under the leases for the car rental agencies are based on a
minimum rental plus a percentage of sates. The rental payments under the leases for the
hanger spaces and travel agent are based on a fixed amount per square foot of space leased.
All of the operating leases are month to month and will expire over the next twe years and
include 30-day cancellation clauses. In most cases, the County expects that in the normal
course of business, leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases.

The County’s airport has eight leases for land located either in the Private Hangar Park or
swrounding the Alrport. These leases are classified as operatingleases. Therental payments
under the leases for the land are a fixed amount for a twenty-five or thirty year pericd. These
leases are noncancellable.

The following schedule provides an analysis of the County’s investment in property on operating
leases and property held for lease by major classes as of September 30, 2015:

Aiarport Terminal & Buildings b 12,222,487
Auport Private Hangar Park and Land 3,249,396

5 15,471,883
Less: accumulated depreciation {4,156,346)

£ 11,315,537

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rentals on noncancellable cperating leases
as of September 30, 2015:
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Note 6 - Operating Leases (coutinued)

Fiscal Year Ending September 30

2016 S 263,024
2017 263,024
2018 259,824
2019 225,502
2020 226,731
20212025 855,276
2026-2030 378,667
20312035 319,078
2036-2040 329,620
204 1-2044 241,636
Total § 3,362,385

Minimum future rentals do not include contingent rentals, which may be received as stipulated in the
lease contracts. These contingent rental payments occur only if the use exceeds a certaiu level of
activity each year. There were no contingent rentals on Airport cancellable operating leases for the
year ended September 30, 2015,

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. All of the 2012 Refunding Bonds and 72% ($1,630,834) of the 2011
Refunding Bonds funded and benefited business-type activities, though resources of the
governmental activities are being used to liquidate the debt. All other General obligation bonds have
been 1ssued for governimental-type activities. The original amount of generzl obligation bonds issued
n prior years was $54,195,000.

General obligation bonds are direct obligation and pledge the full faith and credit on the government.
General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

$1,340,000 2013 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $265,000 to

$275,000 through August 1, 2018; interest rates ranging from .62% to 1.93%. $&05,000
$47,305,000 2012 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $780,000 to

$4.465,000 through August 1, 20235; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%. 37,590,000
$5,550,000 2011 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $55,000 to

$1,150,000 through August 1,2017; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 3.0%. 2,265,000
Total General Obligation Bonds $40,660,000
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt {continued)

Annual debt service requirements to matunty for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 § 4,590,000 § 1,534,121  § 6,124,12)
2017 4,690,000 1,410,930 6,100,930
2018 3,640,000 1,264,257 4,904,257
2019 3,450,000 1,158,000 4,608,000
2020 3,620,000 1,020,000 4,640,000
2021-2025 20,670,000 2,398,000 23,068,000
Total 3 40,660,000 § 8,785,308 % 49,445,308

There is currently $1,069,797 available in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation
bonds. The County has no authorized but unissued bonds at September 30, 2015.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond debentures regarding
authorized uses of bond proceeds. The County is in compliance with all significant limitations and

restrictions.

Capital Lease Obligations:

The county has entered into lease agreement for financing the acquisition of electronic election
system hardware and software. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting
purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of their future minimuim lease
payments as of the inception date. The asset acquired through capital leases is recorded at
$1,707,363 for governmental funds. The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value
of these minimun lease payments as of September 30, 2015, were as follows:

Governmental
Year Endine September 30 Activities
2016 & 369,835
2017 369,835
2018 369,835
2019 369,835
2020 369,836
Tolal minimum lease payments h) 1,849,176
Less: amount representing interest (141,813)

Present value of minimum lease payments § 1,707,363
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Conduit Debt Obligations

The County has issued Housing Finance Corporation Bonds and Industrial Development Corporation
Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are
payable solely from payments received on the underlying loans. Upon repayment of the bonds,
ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity serviced by the bond
issuance. Neither the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, thie bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of September 30, 2015, there were two series of Jefferson
County Housing Finance Corporation Bonds with an aggregate principal amount payable of
$12,413,837, and one series of Jefferson Industrial Development Bonds with an aggregate principal
amount payable of $45,510,000.

Arbitrage Rebate Liability

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 established regulations for the rebate to the federal government of
arbitrage eamings on certain local government bonds issued after December 31, 1985, and all local
governmental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Issuing governmernts must calculate any rebate
due and remit the amount due at least every five years. As of September 30, 2015, there are no
estimated liabilities for arbitrage rebate on govemmental debt. The Debt Service Fund and the
residual balance in the Capital Project Fund have typically been used to liquidate the arbitrage
liability in previous years.

Changes 111 long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows:
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (continued)

Beginning
Balance - Due within
Restated Additions Reduclions Ending Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable
General obligation bonds $ 45,080,000 S - $(4420000) § 40,660,000  $ 4,550,000
Less deferred amounts:
Premjums 4.201,192 - {416,809) 3,784,323 -
Tolal bonds payable § 49.281,192 $ - 5 (4,836,869) § 44,444,323 $ 4,590,000
Capital Leases - 1,707,363 - 1,707,363 369,835
Claims and Judgments 2,547,790 22,628,819 (22,490,986) 2,685,623 2,685,623
Compensated Absences 12,174,444 51,813 {969,605} 12,156,652 782,235
Pension Liability 46,361,282 21,754,938 {20,127,555) 47,988,665
OPEB Obligations 65,724,170 20,547,988 (7.748,641) 78,823,517
Govermunental Aclivities
Long-term Liabilities $ 176.088.878 $ 67.890.921 5056,173.656) 5 187.806.143 5 8,427.693
Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absences h) 234,161 3 73,807 & (53,600} $ 254368 $ 62,601
Pension Liability 849,799 398,767 (368,937) 879,629
Business-type Activilies
Long-tenn liabililies 5 1.083,960 § 472574 S (422537) $ 1,133,997 5 62,60]

Compensated absences liabilities are normally liquidated by the general fund for governmental
activities and by the corresponding enterprise fund for business type activities. Claims and
judgments of governmental funds are normally paid from the corresponding internal service fund.
Claims and judgments of the public entity risk pool are normally paid from the corresponding
intermal service fund. Pension liabilities are normally liquidated by the corresponding funds in
governmental activities and by the corresponding enterprise fund for business type activities. OPEB
Obligations are normally liquidated by the general fund.

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description. The County participates in a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the
statewide Texas County and District Retirement System (“TCDRS”). The Board of Trustees of
TCDRS is responsible for the administration of the statewide agent, multiple-employer, public
employee retirement system consisting of nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS
issues a publicly available comprehensive annnal financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at
www. tedrs.org.

All eligible employees of the County are required to participate in TCDRS.
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued

Benefits Provided. TCDRS provides retirement, disability and death benefits for all of its fulltime
employees. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body ofthe County, within the options
available in the state statutes governing TCDRS.

Members can retire at age 60 and above with 8 or more years of service, with 20 years of service
regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 75 or imore. Members are
vested after eight years of service, but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to
receive any employer-financed benefit. Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a
lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with interest,
and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the
governing body of the employer within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act s0 that
the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the employer’s commitment to
contribute. At retirement, death or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the
employee’s accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a monthly
annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

Employees covered by benefit terins

At the December 31, 2014 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 733
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 568
Active employees 1.203

2.504

Contributions. The contribution rates for employees in TCDRS are either 4%, 5%, 6%, or 7% of
employee gross eamings, as adopted by the employer’s governing body. Participating employers are
required to contribute at actuarially determined rates to ensure adequate fundmg for each employer’s
plan. Under the state law governmg TCDRS, the contribution rate for each entity is determined
annually by the actuary and approved by the TCDRS Board of Trustees. The replacement life entry
age actuarial cost method is used in determining the contribution rate. The actuarially determined
rate is the estimated amount necessary to fund benefits in an orderly manner for each participate over
his or her career so that sufficient funds are accumulated by the time benefit payments begin, with an
additional aimount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the County were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the
fiscal year. The contnbution rates for the County were 17.41% and 17.66% in calendar years 2014
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued

and 2015, respectively. The County’s contributions to TCDRS for the year ended September 30,
2015, were $11,476,313, and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability. The County’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31,
2014, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2014, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 3.0% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.5% per year

8.1%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
Investment rate of return inflation

Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the following:

Depositing members The RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Table for males with a
two-year set-forward and the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality
Table for females with a four-vear setback, both with the
projeclion scale AA.,

Service retiees, beneficiaries The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with the projection scale

and non-depositing members AA, with a one-year set-forward for males and no age adjustment
for females.

Diszbled retirces RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for males with no age

adjustment and RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for females
with a two-year set-forward, both with the projection scale AA.

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of December 31, 2014, were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2009 through
December 31, 2012, except where required to be different by GASB 68.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 8.10%. The pension plan’s
policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
TCDRS Board of Trustees.

The long-term expected rate of return on TCDRS 1s determined by adding inflation to expected long-
terrn real returns, and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The capital market assumptions
and information below are based on January 2015 information for a 7 to 10 year time horizon. The
valuation assumption for long-tenm expected return is re-assessed at a minimum of every four years,
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and 1s set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was performed in 2013. The
target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates return for each major assets class are

summarized in the following table:
Geometric Real
Rate of Return

Taraet {Expected
= minus
Asser Class Renchmnark Allocation'" Infation)
U3 Equitics Dow Jones U.S. Toral Stock Market Index 16.50% 5.35%
Private Equity Cambridge Associates Global Private Equity & 12.00% £.35%
Venture Capital Index !
Global Equities MSCI World (net) Index 1.50% 3.65%
International Equities - Developed
ernational Fquities = Levelop 50% MSCT World Ex USA (net) + 50% MSCI . .
World ex USA 100% Hedged to USD (net) 11.00% 3.33%
Index
International Equitics - Emerging 50% MSCI EM Standard (net) Index + 50% 9.00% 6.35%
MSCTEM 100% Hedged to USD (net) Index
Investment-Grade Bonds Barclays Capital Ageregate Bond Index 3.00% 0.55%
High-Yield Bonds
3 _ 1.00% 3.75%
Citigroup High-Yicld Cash-Pay Capped Index
Opportunisiic Credit
- . . 5.00% 5.54%
Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index
Direct Lending
2.00% 5.80%
Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index
Distressed Debl
N o 3.00% 6.75%
Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index
REIT Equities
67% FTSE NAREIT Equity RETTs Index + 33% 2.00% 4.00%
FRSE FPRA/NAREIT Global Real Estate Index
Commodities Bloomberg Commodities Index 2.00% 0.20%
Master Limited Partnerships (MLPs) Alerian MLP Index 2.00% 5.30%
Privaie Real Estale Partnerships Cambridge Associates Real Estate Index 3.00% 7.20%
Hedge Funds Hedge Fund Rescarch, Inc. (IFRI) Fund of 25.00% 5.15%

Funds Composite Index

™ Targer asset ailocation adopted at the April 2015 TCDRS Board meeting.

™ Geomeiric real rates of requrn in addition o essumed inflation of 1. 7% per Cliffwater's 2013 capital market assumptions.
@ Includes vintage vears 2006-present of Quarter Pocled Horizon IRRs.

™ Includes vintage vears 2007-present of Quarter Pocled Horizen IRRs.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 8.1%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be
made at the rates specified in statue. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net
Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active
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and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Balance at 12/31/2013
Changes for the year:

Service Cost
Interest on total pension liability (1)

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses
Refund of contributions

Benefit payments

Administrative expenses

Member coentributions

Net investment income

Employsr contributions

Other (2)

Balance at 12/31/2014

(n
&

Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does not charge fees or interest

Relates to allocation of system-wide items.

Sensitivity Analysis

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Liabijlity Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)- (9
3 389,135,022 § 341,923940 % 47,211,082
8,802,884 - ‘8,802,884
31,100,211 - 31,100,211
970,401 - 970,401
(603,550) (603,550} -
(18,768,699 (18,768,699} -
- (270,923) 270,923
- 4,514,879 (4,514,879)
- 23,395,891 (23,395.891)
. 11,131,001 (11,131,001
- 445,436 (445,436)
% 410,636,269 % 361,767,975 § 48,868.294

The following presents the net pension liability of the County, calculated using the discount rate of
8.1%, as well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.1%) or 1-percentage-ligher (9.1%) than the current

rate:
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Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
7.1% 8.1% 9.1%
Total pension liability § 461,960,556 $ 410,636,269 b 368,137,840
Fiduciary net position 361.767.975 361.767.975 361.767.5975
Net pension
liability/(asset) 3 100,192,581 §__ 48,868,294 3 6.369.865

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-
issued TCDRS financial report. The report may be obtained on the Internet at www. icdrs. org.
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 3015, the County recognized pension expense of $8,468,035.

At September 30, 2015, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Inflows Cutflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual economic experience $ - 5 776,321
Difference between projected and
actual investment earnings - 3,543,858
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date - 9,429,423
Total 3 - ) 13,749,602

£9,429,423 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2015. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as
follows:
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Year Ended
December 31,
2015 $ 1,080,045
2016 1,080,045
2017 1,080,045
2018 1,080,044
Thereafter -

Note 9 — Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description -
The County sponsors a single-employer defined benefit post-employment benefit plan.

ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION

Actuarial Valuation Date October 1, 2014
Projected Unit

Actuarial Cost Method Credit

Amortization Method Level Dollar (open)

Remaining Amortization

Period 30 years

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Discount Rate 4.00%

General Inflation Rate 3.00%

Retiree Benefits

The County provides post-retirement health care benefits to all employees who retired on or after
April 9, 1990. Effective January 1, 1997, Commissioners’ Court adopted the following policy
detailing eligibility requirements for participation in this benefit:

A) the employee must have retired under the Texas County and District Retirement
System (TCDRS) guidelines described in Note 8; and

B) the employee must have at least 8 years of TCDRS credible service with Jefferson
County.

For retirees prior to February 1, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for
those retirees that qualify. After February 1, 2003, the County will pay on the following scale for
retirees that qualify:
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Percentage Percentage
Yearsof  Paid by Paid by
Service Retiree Ceounty

8-11 30% 70%
12-15 20% 30%
16-19 1094 90%
20+ 0% 100%

Retiree Spouse Benefits
The employee's spouse is eligible for County paid health insurance benefits following the employee's
retirement if;

A) the employee met the above requirements A and B; and,

B) the employee's spouse was enrolled in the health plan either as a dependent or an
active County employee.

Spouse participation will end in the event of a divorce, at which time COBRA continuation will be
offered as described below.

Forretirees prior to February 1, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for
those retirees’ spouses that qualify. Forretirees between February 1, 2003 and February 28, 2005, the
County will pay the same scale as described above for retirees’ spouses that qualify. For retirees
after February 28, 2005, the County requires the following premiums to be paid for retirees’ spouses
that qualify:

Age of Spouse Premium Amount Due
Less than 65 during ten year | Equal to the active employee
maximum contribution made for a spouse
Less than 65 after ten year
Imaximum Full Prerium
Same percentage as retiree see
Qver 65 table above

As of September 30, 2015, there were 570 participants receiving benefits.
Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost —

In June 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45
{GASB 45), creating accounting standards for Other Post Employment Benefits {(OPEB) provided by
governmental entities separately from a pension plan. This Statement establishes standards for the
measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets),
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Note 9 — Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (continued)

note disclosures, and if applicable required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial reports
of state and local governments.

The Plan contribution rates are set annually by Commissioners’ Court based on the combination of
premiums and prior year costs of the self-funded portion of the plan. The Plan is funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis. In 2015 the total contribution was §4,094.919.

The calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in
effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. Actuarial valuation for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-
term perspective.

The County’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameter of GASB 45.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not
to exceed thirty years. The County had its most recent OPEB actuarial valuation performed for the
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2014 as required by GASB. The County’s annual OPEB cost for the
current year is as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 18,219,021
Interest on prior year Net OPEB

Obligation 2,628,967
Adjustment to ARC (3,654,649)
Annual OPEB Cost $ 17,193,339
County's Contributiont made (4,094,919)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation § 13,098,420

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year $ 65,724,170
Net OPEB Obligation - end of year $ 78,822,590
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Note 9 — Qther Post-Emplovment Benefits (continued)

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage Net
Ending OPEB of OPEB OPEB
Cost Contributed Obligation
09/30/2013 §16,497,527 21.20% §52,495,987
09/30/2014 $17,017,533 22.27% $65,724,170
09/30/2015 $17,193,339 23.86% §78,822.,590

Funded Status and Funding Progress -
As of October 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $170,556,354, and the actuarial value of assets was $0,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $170,556,354. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $65,067,626, and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 262%.

The schedule of tunding progress is presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions —

Projection of benefits for financial reporting are made on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefits costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuanal accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In order to perform the
valuation, it was necessary for the County and the actuary to make certain assumptions regarding
items such as rates of employee turnover, retirement, and mortality, as well as economic assumptions
regarding healthcare trend and interest rates.

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the County’s
retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial
assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then
provides for a systematic funding for these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to
cover the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the
unfunded accrued liability.

In the October 1, 2014, actuarial valuation, a 4% discount rate and a general inflation rate of 3.00%
per year was used. The medical trend rates 10% for 2015, 9.5% in 2016, 9.0% in the third year,
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Note 9 — Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (continued)

8.50% in the fourth year, and ultimately grading down to 4.5% per year after the twelfth year was
used.

There has not been a separate, audited GAAP-basis postemployment benefit plan report issued.

Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan

Employees of Jefferson County, Texas may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with
Respect to Service for State and Local Governments).

The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrelated financial institution. Amendments
to the laws governing Section 457 deferred compensation plans substantially became effective
January [, 1997. The County approved plan amendments such that plan assets are held in trust by a
third party custodian, for the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The
assets will not be diverted to any other purpose. The County’s beneficial ownership of plan assets
will be held for the further exclusive benefit of the plan for the exclusive benefit of participants and
beneficiaries.

Accordingly, the County performs minimal administrative functions and does not perform any
investment functions for the plan. Consequently, the assets held by the custodian are not included

the financial statements as of September 30, 2015.

Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Equitv Balances

The following funds had deficit equity balances as of Septermnber 30, 2015:
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Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Equitv Balances - continue

Governmental Activities

Law Library 5 1,139
Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid 15,075
Mental Health Services 8,289
Juvenile Drug Court 4913
Drug Diversion Program 4,203
Juvenile TIPC A 57,201
Sheriff Traiming Grant 1,938
JAG Grant 8,094
Sheriff Dept Grants 95
Auto Theft Grant 6,754
Drug Intervention Grant 140
Cheek Water and Sewer Phase 4 88,969
CETRZ Grant 395226
Total for Governmental Activities $ 592,036

Business-type Activities
Southeast Texas Government Employee
Benefits Pool Fund $2,809,885

Total for Business-type Activities

$2,809,885

If funding does not become available to cover these deficit fund balances from other governimental
entities, the County plans to transfer funds to cover the deficit fund balance.

Note 12 - Risk Managcement

The Liability Insurance Fuind was established to account for the contributions from the General Fund
for payment of general liability claims. Under the laws of the State of Texas, claims for torts are
limited to $100,000 per person and $300,000 per incident. The Liability Fund records a claim as
payable when information pnor to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is
probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated
considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Liability Insurance Fund’s claims liability
(including an estimnate for claims incurred but not reported) were:

2015 2014
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $371,096 $370,760
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 1,327,720 268,378
Claim payments (389.,841) (268,042)
Liability for claims, end of fiscal year 51,308,975 §371,094
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Note 12 - Risk Management (continued)

The Workers® Compensation Fund was established to account for the County’s workers’
compensation claims. Contributions are made from the General, Special Revenue, and Enterprise
Funds for employees covered under the County’s workers’ compensation policy. Contributions to the
fund are determined by position class code within each department. From October 1, 1999, to
February 14, 2005 the County was fully insured for workers’ compensation claims and employers’
liability. Asof February 15,2005, the County is self insured for workers” compensation claims and
employers’ liability. The County has excess coverage for workers’ compensation claims and
employers’ liability claims limiting the County’s liability to $500,000 per occurrence for losses
occurring prior to October 1, 1999 and after February 15, 2005. Settled claims have not exceeded
comumercial coverages in any of the past three fiscal years. Liabilities of the fund are reported when
it 1s probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities
are calculated considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Worker’s Compensation
Fund’s claims liability (including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were:

2015 2014
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $396,044 $301,481
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 864,227 774,404
Claim payments (724,048) (679.841)
Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $536,223 $396.044

Note 13 — Public Entity Risk Pool

On November 27, 2000, the Jefferson County Comuussioners’ Court pursuant to Texas Local
Government Code Ann. Sec. 172.001 organized the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits
Pool (The Pool). The Pool was organized for the benefit of Texas Political Subdivisions and Special
Districts to make available accident, life, and health benefits for Pool member employees. Twelve
trustees govern the Pool. Five of these trustees are the Jefferson County Auditor, Jefferson County
Insurance and Benefits Manager, Jefferson County Human Resources Director, Jefferson County
Purchasing Agent, and the Jefferson County Assistant District Attorney. Two of the trustees are
members of Commissioners’ Court. The remaining five trustees are appointed by Commissioners’
Court.

The Pool is responsible for adopting underwriting standards, qualifications for membership in the
pool, and establishing the types of benefits to be provided and associated fees for these benefits. The
members of the Pool are responsible for their members’ eligibility in the pool and paynent of
monthly contributions for participation in the Pool. The Pool members are not subject to
supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies. Ifthe assets of the Pool were to be exhausted,
members would not be responsible for the Pool’s liabilities. Pool members currently include
Jefferson County, Texas (reporting entity), Jefferson County Drainage District #3, and Jefferson
County Drainage District #6. The total number of members in the Pool is 1,652. Operations of the
Pool are accounted for as an internal service fund.
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The Pool uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on medical and
prescription claims. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the Pool had stop loss insurance
contracts to limit the medical and prescription claims per individual member to $250,000 in a
calendar year witha $1,250,000 aggregating group deductible. The Pool did not exceed these limits
during fiscal year 2015 but did exceed these limits by $78,291 during fiscal year 2014, and by
§187,182 during fiscal year 2013.

Liabilities of the Pool are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported. Claun liabilities are calculated considering recent claim settlements trends.

Changes in the Pool’s claims liability (including an estimate of claims incurred but not reported and
claim adjustment expenses) were:

2015 2014
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $£1,780,650  $1,625,837
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 20,436,872 18,709,205
Claim payments (21,377,097) (18,554,392)
Liability for claims, end of fiscal year 5840425  $1,780,650

Additional information including teu-year revenue and claim development are addressed in a
separate annual report. The annual report 1nay be obtained from Southeast Texas Governmental
Employee Benefits Pool, 215 Franklin Street Suite 200, Beaumont, Texas 77701.

Note 14 - Construction and Other Significant Commitments

As of September 30, 2015, the County had the following commitments with respect to unfinished
capital projects:

Remaining Construction Expected Date
Capital Project Comumitment of Completion
Courthouse Restoration b 2,507,179 09/30/2016
Public Health Building 237,807 12/31/2015
Roads 245,822 03/31/2016
McFaddin National Wildlife
Refuge Dune Restoration 31,300,060 12/31/2016
Public Interest Projects 358,217 09/30/2016
5 6,649,085
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Note 15 - Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the State of Texas. Any disallowed expenditures or claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is involved in lawsuits and other claims in the ordinary course of operations. The
outcome of these lawsuits and other claims are not presently detenminable and the resolutions of

these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial condition of the County.

Note 16 — Prior Period Adjustments

In the fund level financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2015, increases to beginning
fundbalance in the amount of $38,330 were made to Non Major Special Revenue funds for Juvenile
Community Corrections Program ($34,163) and to Juvenile Advocate Incentive (54,167) for
corrections to prior year adjustments to revenues.

As aresult of implementing GASB Statement 68, the County has decreased beginning net position as
of October 1, 2014 by $37,503,467 for the governmental activities. This decrease results from
recording Net Pension liability of $46,361,282 which was partially offset by a Deferred Outflow of
Resources for Contributions made after 12/31/2013 of $8,857,815. In addition, the County has
decreased beginning net position as of October 1, 2014 by $687,436 for the business-type activities.
This decrease results from recording Net Pension liability of $849,799 which was partially offset by
a Deferred Outflow of Resources for Contributions made after 12/31/2013 of $162,363.

The total effect of these adjustiments decreased beginning net position of the governumental activities
by $37,465,137 and decrease beginning net position of the business-type activities by §687,436.

Note 17 - Restatements and Reclassifications

Certain restatements have been made to the prior year financial statements in order to conform to the
presentation of the current year financial statements.

Note 18 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement 72, Fair Falue Measurement and Application (“GASB 727), addresses accounting
and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements by providing guidance for
determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes and guidance for applying fair
value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. GASB 72 will be
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that are
not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
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Note 18 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements - continued

Statements 67 and 68 (“GASB 737), establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that are
not within the scope of Statement No. 68, dccounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as well
as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. In addition, it establishes
requirements for defined contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68. It also
amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, and
Staterment 68 for pension plans and pensions that are within their respective scopes. GASB 73 will
be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension
Plans (“GASB 747), replaces GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. GASB 74 addresses the financial reports of defined benefit
OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified criteria. GASB 74 will be
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2017 and the impact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
than Pension Plans (“GASB 757), replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB
75 require govemments to report a liability on the face of the financial stateinents for the OPEB that
they provide. GASB 75 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2018 and the impact has
not yet been determined.

GASB Statement 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and
Local Governments (“GASB 76™), has the objective to identify — in the context of the current
governmental financial reporting environment — the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”). GASB 76 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the
impact has not yet been determined.

(GASB Statement 77, Tax A batement Disclosures (“GASB 777), requires governments that enter into
tax abatement agreements to make certain disclosures conceming the agreements to be able to assess
how tax abatements affect their financial position and results of operations, including their ability to
raise resources in the future. GASB 77 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and
the 1npact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement 78, Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit
Pension Plans (“GASB 78”), amends the scope and applicability of GASB 68 in association with
pensions provided through certain multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and to state of
local governmental employers whose employees are provided with such pensions. GASB 78 will be
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants (“GASB 797),
establishes criteria for an extemal investment pool to qualify for making the lection to measure all of
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Note 18 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements - continued

1ts investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. GASB 79 will be implemented by
the County 1n fiscal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been determined.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES:
TAXES:
PROPERTY
SALES TAX
FEES
LICENSES
SALES, RENTALS, AND SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
FINES AND FORFEITURES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEQUS
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT AND STRUCTURES
CAPITAL OUTLAY
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS CUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL ARIGUNT FINAL BUDGET
76,885,100 76,885,100 76,668,604 (216,456)
21,430,000 21,450,000 23,703,964 2,253,964

8.680,744 8,680,744 9,473,369 792,625
418,200 418,200 439,198 40,998
1,429,876 1,429,876 1,974,325 544,449
1,574,315 1,574,315 1,757,619 183,304
1,725,000 1,725,000 1,927,212 202,212
212,000 212,000 331,935 119,955
24,000 24,000 29,495 5,495
- - 375 375
112,399,235 112,399,235 116,326,116 3,926,881
23,355,928 24,446,442 23,352,652 1,093,790
69,404,254 69,549,855 66,182,403 3,367,452
404,159 404,159 382,440 21,719
10,791,110 10,819,132 10,123,450 695,682
13,649,961 13,696,346 12,137,612 1,558,734
117,605,412 118915934  112,178.557 6,737,377
(5,206,177 (6,516,699) 4,147,559 10,664,258
(4,876,206) (3,565,684) (3.531,102) 34,582
(1,876,206) (3,565,684) (3.531,102) 34,582
(10,082,383) (10,082,383} 616,457 10,698,340
47,264,400 47,264 400 47,264,400 -
37,182,017 37,182,017 47,880.857 10,698,840

69



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

1. Budgetary Basis

o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP.

o The department is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners’ Court
approval is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may
not increase the total budget.

o Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and the Debt Service Funds.

o The Capital Project Fund — Capital Projects Fund which is considered a major fund
does not have a legally adopted budget.

2. Analysis of Significant Expenditure Variances from Original Budget

Commisstoners’ Court approved approximately $1 million in budget transfers over the original
budget for General Services for additional cost for funding to the Liability Claims account.

In addition, the Court approved approximately $350,000 in budget transfers over the original
budget for the increased cost for indigent defense. These transfers were not part of the original
budget.

The above budget transfers were funded with the savings from various departinents.

Commissioners’ Court was able to achieve $6,771.959 1in actual savings from the total budget,
with the assistance from all County departiments.
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LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Plan Year Ended December 31 2014
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost ) 8,802,884
Interest total pension liability 31,100,211
Effect of economic/demographic
gains) or losses 970,401
Benefit payments/refunds
of contributions { 19372249)
Net change in total pension liability 5 21,501,247
Total pension liability - beginning 389,135,022
Total pension liability - ending () 3 410,636,269
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Empioyer contributions $§ 11,131,001
Member contributions 4,514,879
Investment income net of
investment expenses 23,393,891
Benefit payments refunds of
contributions ( 19,372,249)
Administrative expenses ( 270,923)
Other 445436
Net change 1n plan fiduciary net position § 19,844,035
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 341,923,940
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (&) § 361,767,975
Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) § 48,868,294

Fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total pension liability 38.10%

Pensionable covered payrotl § 63,934,361
Net pension Jiability as a percentage
of covered payroll 76.43%

* Reporting began in fiscal year 2015.
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TEXAS COUNTY AND DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

FORTHE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Fiscal  Actuarially Actual Contribution Pensionable Actual Contribution
Year Determined Employer Deficiency Covered as a % of Covered
Ended Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll (1) Payroll
2014 10,889,473 10,889,473 - 63,521,999 17.1%
2015 11,476,313 11,476,313 - 65,197,649 17.6%

(1) Payroll is calculated based on contributions as reported to TCDRS.

* Information prior to fiscal year 2014 is not available.
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
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Valuation Timing

Actuarial Cost Method

Asset Valuation Method
Smoothing period
Recognition method
Comnder

Inflatiocn

Salary Increases

Investrnent Rate of Return

Cost-of Living Adjustments

Retirement Age

Tuarnover

Mortality
Depositing members

Service retirees, beneficianes
and non-deposition members

Disabled retirees

Other Information

Acruarially determined contmibution rates are calculated as of December 31, two
years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are reported.

Entry age normal

S years
Non-asymptotic

None
3.0%

Annual salary increasc rates assumed for individual members vary by length of
service and by entry-age group. The annual rates consist of general wage inflation
component of 3.5% (made up of 3.0% intlation and 9.5% productivity increase
assumptions) and a merit, promotion and longevity component that on average
approximates 1.4% per year for a career employee.

8.10%

Cost-of-Living Adjustments are not considered to be substannvely automatic

under GASB 68. Therefore, no assumption for the future cost-of-living adjustments
is included in the GASRB calculations. No assumption for future cost-of-living
adjusrments is included in the funding valuation.

Experience-based tables of rates based on a study of the period 2009-2012.
New employees are assumed 1o replace any terminated members and have simtlar

entry ages.

The RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Table for males with a rwo-year set-
forward and the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Tables for females with a four-
year setbaek, both with the projection scale AA.

The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with the projecrion scale AA, with a one-
year set-forward for males and no age adjustment for females.

RP-2000 Disabled Mortaliry Table for males with no age adjustmzent and RP-2000
Disabled Mortality Table for females with a two-year set-forward, both with the

projection scale AA.

There were no benefit changes during the ycar.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Fiscal Year Date Assets (AAL)* AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroil
(a) (b} (b-a) (a/b) {c) [(b-a)/c]
2013 10/1/2012 §0  §£149,094,287 $149,094,287 0% §62,180,294 239.78%
2014 10/1/2013 $C  §$159,551,852 "~ §159,551,852 0%  $63,647485 250.68%
2015 10/1/2014 30  §$170,556,354 $170,556,354 0%  $65,067,626 262.12%

* Actuarial liability determined under the projected unit credit cost method.

A Actuarial accrued lisbility estimated tased on roli-forward of prior year October 1 valuation results.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

BUDGETED AMOLUNTS ACTUAL VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNT FINALBUDGET
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR §  3.663,340 3,663,340 3,517,206 151,134
HUMAN RESOURCES 430,962 430,962 176,157 54,803
COUNTY AUDITOR 1,421,573 1,421,573 1.363.388 58,183
COUNTY CLERK 2.217.027 2.217,027 2,130,773 86,249
COUNTY JUDGE §94.428 394,478 823,128 69,300
RISK MANAGEMENT 240,745 240,745 228,692 12,053
COUNTY TREASURER 318,326 318,326 369,794 §,532
PRINTING DEEARTMENT 168,274 168,214 148,241 20,033
PURCHASING AGENT 541,311 547311 496,973 50,398
GENERAL SERVICES 6,083,708 11,042,419 10,833.950 208,463
DATA PROCESSING 1,076.244 2,113,047 1,971,981 141,066
VOTERS REGISTRATION DEPARTMENT 226,010 226,010 307,586 18,424
ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT 815,333 £15.383 605,345 210,038
VETERANS SERVICE 282,531 282,337 217427 5,110
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 5 23,355.928 24446442 13.352,652 1,093,790
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT:
DISTRICT ATTORNEY by 6,481,869 6,481,869 6,006.333 475,536
QISTRICT CLERK 1,799,632 1,799,632 1,759,989 39,643
CRIMMNAL DISTRICT COURT 1,509,101 1,509,101 1,408,957 100,144
3RTH DISTRICT COURT 305.686 305.686 283.960 21,726
60TH DISTRICT COURT 281,724 287,724 281,635 6,039
136TH DISTRICT COURT 293.706 293,706 291,170 2,536
172ND DISTRICT COURT 295,125 295,125 262,315 32010
252ND DISTRICT COLRT 1,158,506 1,358,506 1,356,512 1.694
279TH DISTRICT COURT 187,283 412285 410,156 2,129
3 7TH DISTRICT COURT 699,183 796,183 154,761 35,422
JURY 1,086.240 193240 166,944 23.296
LP. PRECINCT NO. | - PLACE NO, | 155,094 355,094 342463 12,626
L.P. PRECINCT NO. | -PLACEND. 2 349,530 349,550 324912 24,638
LP. PRECINCT NO. 2 330,558 330,558 282,561 47,097
LP. PRECINCT NO. ¢ 335319 355319 317,629 17.690
LP. FRECINCTNO. & 364,634 364,634 348,028 16,606
LB PRECINCT NO. 7 362.270 362,270 317,186 45,034
JP. FRECINCT NO. 8 364,959 364,959 319,578 45,381
COUNTY COURT AT LAWNO. | 474,535 474,535 433,790 15,745
COUNTY COURT AT LaAW KO.2 653,153 644,133 590,116 54,037
COUNTY COURT AT LAWNO. 2 635,528 672,130 644,545 27,385
COURT MASTER 483,603 494,103 465,840 28,263
DISPUTE RESOLUTION CENTER 254,682 254,682 202,966 51,714
JUVENILE ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL 331,977 381,977 331,127 44,350
COMMUNITY SUPERVISION 14,728 14,728 14.259 469
SHERIFF 13,169,790 13,196,368 12,455,543 140,325
CRIME LABORATORY 1,469,693 1,469,693 1,337,962 131,131
JAIL 27,520,354 27,520,354 26.859.003 661,291
JUVENILE CORRECTIONAL PROBATION 1,602,440 1.602,440 1,379,633 222.807
JUVENILE DETENTION HOME 2,042,112 3,042,112 1,759,213 252 899
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. | 784,351 810,851 740,764 10,087
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 2 464,729 464,729 446,432 18,297
CONSTABLE FRECINCT NO. 4 426,367 426,867 389,192 31,615
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 6 569,176 369176 556,526 12,650
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. ¥ 455985 455,985 437,194 18,791
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. § 453 508 438,531 443,333 15,198
COUNTY MORGUE 760,000 783,000 171961 7.039
TOTAL JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT S 69.404.254 69,549 855 66.182,403 3.367.452
[CONTINUED]
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

EDUCATION AND RECREATION:
AGRICULTURAL EXTENSIOM SERVICE

TOTAL EDUCATION AND RECREATION

HEALTH AND WELFARE:
PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT |
PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT 2
NURSE PRACTITIONER,

CHILD WELFARE
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
MDIGENT MEDICAL SERVICE
MOSQUITO CONTROL
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
TOBACCO SETTLEMENT FUND

TOTAL HEALTH AND \WWELFARE

FAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT & STRUCTLRES:

COURTHOLSE & ANNEXES
PORT ARTHUR BULLDINGS
MID-COUNTY BUILDINGS
ROAD & BRIDGEPCT. |
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. 2
ROAD & DRIDGE PCT, 3
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. 4
ENGINEERING

FARKS & RECREATION
SERVICE CENTER

TOTAL MAINTENANCE - EQUIPNMENT & STRUCTURES & 13.649,961

CAPITAL OUTLAY:

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES;
TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES

TOTAL GENERAL FUND CXPENDITURES

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL  VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNT  FINAL BUDGET

3 404,159 404,159 382.440 21,719
5 404,159 404,159 382,440 21,719
5 1,308,394 1,267,355 1,169,089 98,266
1,256,570 1,233.831 1,160,679 73,152
299,070 299,070 287,160 11,910
153,500 153,900 115,787 38,113
408,121 408,121 392,096 16.025
4,900,891 4,992,891 4,960,137 32,754
2,189.276 2,189,276 L771,414 417,862
224,688 224,688 217,088 7,600
50.000 50,000 50,000 -

s 1079L110 10.319,132 10,123,450 695,682
§ 2,754,648 2,769,117 2,525,011 244,106
746,362 759,246 700,948 58,298
232,228 232,228 195,953 36,275
1,644,279 1,644,279 1,439,171 205.108
1,555,393 1,786,923 1,630,947 155,978
1,751,562 1,751,562 1,582,571 168,991
2174214 2,269,214 1,994,511 274,703
085,364 985,864 26,173 59,601
197,532 190,032 115,249 71,783
1,307.879 1.307,87% 1,024,078 281.801
13,596,346 12,131,612 1.558,734

3 - . . .
§ 117,605,412 118,915,934 112,178,557 6.737.377
$_ 4876306 3.565.684 3,531.102 14,582
5 4876.206 3.565.684 3,531,102 34,582
§ 122451618 122481618  115709.659 6.771,959
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

TOTAL
NONRLALIOR
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE FUNDS
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS 3 19,261,464 1,873,050 1,099,103 22,235,619
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 142,277 20,990 - 163,267
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 6,41) 7006 413 7,530
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 23,248 - 23,248
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,508,157 1,598,966 - 3,107,123
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Nel - - 107,397 107,897
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net - - 54,767 34,767
INVENTORY, At Cosl 35,754 - 53,734
PREPAID ITEM 781 - - 7381
TOTAL ASSETS s 20,998,092 3.495.712 1,262,182 25735986
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3 872,514 692,788 44,234 1,909,536
DUE TCO OTHER FUNDS 873,700 609,281 - 1,484,981
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITLIES 519,735 - - 519,735
UNEARNED REVENUE 675,833 - 673,833
TOTAL LIABILITIES b 2,943.782 1,602,069 44,234 4,390.083
DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- PROPERTY TAXES § - - 148,131 148,131
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- GRANTS 490.361 393,226 - 885,587
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES $ 490,361 395226 148,151 1,033,738
FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR:

INVENTORY ) 33,754 - - 33,754

PREPAID ITEMS 781 - - 781
RESTRICTED FOR:

DEBT SERVICE - - 1,069,797 1,069,797

CONSTRUCTION - 30,077 - 50,077

PUBLIC INTEREST 2,570,226 - - 2,570,226

JUDICIAL & LAW ENFORCEMENT 4,908,014 - 4,908,014

EDUCATION & RECREATION 1,468,933 - - 1,468,983

HEALTH & WELTARE 8,427,577 - - §,427,577

MAMNTENANCE OF STRUCTURES

& EQUIPMENT 329,424 - - 320,424
COMMITTED FOR:

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS - 3,941,806 - 3,941,806
ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS - 1,799,539 - 1,799,339
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (196.810) (4.293,005) - (4.489.813)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5 17,563,949 1.498.417 1,069,797 20,132,163

TOTAL LWABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 3 20.998.052 3,495,712 1,262,182 25,735,986

77



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES 5
SATLES TAXES
FEES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES
FINES AND FORFEITURES
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES )
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT
GENERAL GOVERNMENT b

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
AND EQUIPMENT

CAPITAL OUTLAY

DEBT SERVICE
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES b3

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN b
TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) §

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES %

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 5
PRIOGR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (Restated) $

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3

TOTAL
NONMAJOR
SPECLAL CATITAL DERT GOVERNMENTAL
REVENLIE PROJECTS SERVICE FUNDS
- - 6,182,154 6,182,154
1,291,716 - - 1,291,716
4864247 - - 4,364,247
8,689,966 5,222,040 - 13,912,006
1,033,489 1,494,942 - 2,528,431
193,648 - - 193,648
4,967 50,000 - 54,967
80,947 5,127 15,561 101,635
16,158,980 6.772,109 6,197,715 29,128,804
434,275 - - 434275
14,364,433 - - 14,364,433
1,057,539 - - 1,057,539
356,068 - - 356,068
40,593 . - 40,593
- 7233879 - 7,233,879
- - 4,420,000 4,420,000
- - 1,693,044 1,695,044
16,252,908 7,233,879 6,115,044 29,601.831
(93,928) (461,770) 82,671 (473,027)
1,137,034 372,155 - 1,509,239
(325.853) - - (325,.853)
811,231 372,155 - 1,183,386
717,303 (89,615) 82,671 710,359
16,303,316 1,588,032 987,126 19,383,474
38,330 - - 38,330
16,846,646 1,588,032 987,126 19,421,804
17,563,949 1498417 1,069,797 20,132,163
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources other than expendable trusts, or major capital projects that are legally restricted
to expenditures for specified purposes. Included in this heading are the following
individual funds:

Lateral Road Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures of materials
incurred in the maintenance of the lateral roads of the County. Financing is provided
by contributions from the State. :

Breath Alcohol Testing Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
courts on D.W.1. convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

Law Library Fund - This fund is used to account for the maintenance of the County
Law Library. Financingis provided by fees from law suits filed in the District Courts
and County Courts-at-Law.

Juvenile Probation and Detention Fund - This fund is used to account for receipts
specifically designated for use in juvenile programs.

County Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to
account for fees collected by the County Clerk for the maintenance of their records and
the expenditure of those funds.

County Clerk Records Archive Fund - This fund is used to account for fees
collected by the County Clerk for the preservation of records prior to 1990 and the
expenditure of those funds.

ASAP Constable Pet 8 Program - This fund is used to account for fees collected
from the Port Arthur Independent School for the administration of the Absent Student
Assistance Program (ASAP) by the Constable Pct 8 and the expenditure of those funds
for the program.

County Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to
account for fees collected by the County Clerk, District Clerk, and Sheriff for the
maintenance of County records and the expenditure of those funds.




Justice Court Building Security - This fund is used to account for fees collected by
the justice courts to finance security services and equipment for justice courts not
located in the County courthouse.

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection of a 2%
Hotel/Motel Occupancy tax. Revenues collected from this tax are to be used for
tourism projects in the County.

County and District Court Technology Fund — This fund is used to account for fees
collected from defendants convicted in a County, Statutory County, or District court
and the expenditures of those funds on technological enhancements for the previously
mentioned courts.

Sheriff and Constable Education Fund - This fund is used to account for the
expenditures associated with the education of Sheriff’s deputies and Constables of the
County.

Tax OQffice Auto Dealer Fund - This fund is used to account for taxes collected from
Local Auto Dealerships to be used by the County’s Tax Office.

Unclaimed Funds Management Fund - This fund is used to account for Unclaimed
Funds for all County departments.

Family Protection Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
District Clerk for family violence prevention or intervention and the expenditure of this
money.

District Attorney Forfeiture Fund - This fund is used to account for forfeitures
received by the District Attorney from criminal convictions and the expenditure of
those funds.

Hot Check Fund - This fund is used to account for fees received by the District
Attorney for the prosecution of hot check offenders and the expenditure of those funds.

Justice of the Peace Courtroom Technology Fund —This fund is used to account for
the fees collected by the Justices of the Peace on misdemeanor convictions and the
expenditure of those funds on technological enhancements for the justices® courts.




District Clerk Records Management Fund - This fund is used to account for fees
collected by the District Clerk for the maintenance of their records and the expenditure
of those funds.

County Clerk Election Contracts - This fund is used to account for fees collected by
the County Clerk for election contracts with local governments and the expenditure of
those funds.

County Clerk HAVA Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
County Clerk for the rental of equipment purchased by the Help Americans Vote Act
(HAVA) grant. ‘

Child Abuse Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected for certain
child sexual assault and related convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

Sheriff’s Special Revenue Funds - This fund is used to account for fees, forfeitures,
and other revenue received by the Sheriff in association with Security Fees, Law
Officer Training fees, D.A.R.E. Contributions, Sheriff’s Forfeitures, Sheriff’s
Commissary, Sheriff — Spindletop Grant, and the Marine Division reimbursements, and
the expenditure of those funds.

Guardianship Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
County Clerk to supplement the support of the judiciary in cases involving
guardianships. _

Juvenile Delinquency Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected by
the courts for certain offenses and the expenditures associated with juvenile
delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication measures.

District Court Records Technology - This fund is used to account for fees collected
by the District Clerk for the preservation and restoration of District Court records.

Probation Department Funds - These funds are used to account for the expenditures
of maintaining probation services as authorized by the County and District Courts.
Financing 1s provided by State grant and probationary fees. Included in this heading
are the following individual funds:

Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid
Juvenile Community Corrections Program



IV-E Foster Care Fund
Juvenile Grant A — State Aid
Mentally Impaired Offenders
Community Supervision
Women’s Center

Mental Health Services
Community Corrections
DWI Pretrial Diversion
Juvenile Drug Court

Drug Diversion Program
Juvenile Accountability #2
Juvenile TIPC A

Juvenile Advocate Incentive

Grant Funds - These funds are used to account for receipts of Federal and State grants
designated for special projects or services. Included in this heading are the following
individual funds:

Family Group Conferencing
Sheritf Training Grant

JAG Grant

Sheriff Dept Grants

SCAAP Grant

Crime Victims Clearing - 1
Regional Communication
Crime Victims Clearing - 2
EMPG Grant

Forensic Science Improvement Grant
Port Security Grants

Auto Theft Grant

FEMA Emergency

Drug Intervention Grant
Violence Against Women - 1
Violence Against Women - 2
Family Treatment Court

SHSP & LETPP Grants

Cheek Water and Sewer Phase 4
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

TATERAL
ROAD
FUNDS

BREATH
ALCOBOL
TESTING
FUND

LIBRARY
FUND

JUVENILE
PROBATION &
DETENTION
FUND

ASSETS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 350,097
ACCOUNTS RECETVABLE, Net -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 132
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS -
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES -
INVENTORY, ALCosl -
PREPAID ITEMS -

24.133

12,178

TOTAL ASSETS 5 350,229

24,142

12.181

569.284

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5 20.805
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS -
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES -
UNEARNED REVENUE - GRANTS -

13,320

2,587

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 20.805

13.320

2.387

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS 5

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOLRCES ]

FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR:
INVENTORY 3
PREPAID ITEMS -
RESTRICTED FOR:
PUBLIC INTEREST
JUDICIAL & LAW
ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION & RECREATION -
HEALTH & WELFARE -
MAINTENANCE OF
STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT 129,424
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) -

24,142

{1.139)

566,697

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3 329.424

24,142

11.139)

366.697

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES 3 350,229

24,142

12,181

569,284
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COUNTY CLERK COUNTY COUNTY
RECORDS CLERK ASAP RECORDS
MGMT. AND RECORDS CONSTABLE MGMT. AND
PRESERVATION ARCHNVE PCTS PRESERVATION
FUND FUND PROGRAM FUND
845473 365,161 - 666,952
307 199 245
- 92,125 -
843.780 365.360 92.125 667.197
- 35,479 33.483 1,749
- - 38.642 -
- 35.479 92123 1.799
848,780 309.881 - 663.448
848.780 509.881 665.448
848.780 563.360 92.125 667.197
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

JUSTICE HOTEL COUNTY &

COURT OCCUPANCY DISTRICT COURT
BUILDING TAX TECUNOLOGY
SECURITY FLND FUNB

ASSETS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 94.848 1.404.060 16.873
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net - 103329 -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 35 192 6
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - - -
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - -
INVENTORY, At Cost - - -
PREPAID TTEMS - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 3 94.883 1.509.581 16.879

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESQURCES, AND FLUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5 - 40.898 228
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - -
DUE 1O OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - -
UNEARNED REVENUE - GRANTS - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 - 40.898 228

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES - - -

FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR;
INVENTORY 3 ; ; }
PREPAID ITEMS ; ; N
RESTRICTED FOR
PUBLIC INTEREST ; . N
JUDICIAL & LAW
ENFORCEMENT 94,883 - 16.631
EDUCATION & RECREATION - 1,468,983 )
HEALTH & WELFARE . . N
MAINTENANCE OF
STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT - - -
UNA SSIGNED (DEFICIT) - . )

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3 94 883 1.468.983 16,651

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESQURCES,
AND FURD BALANCES 3 94 333 1.509.881 16.879




SHERIFF AND TAX OFFICE UNCLAIMED DISTRICT JP

CONSTABLE AUTO FUNDS FAMILY ATTORNEY BOT COURTROOM

EDUCATION DEALER MANAGEMENT PROTECTSON FORFEITURE CHECK TECHNOLOGY
FUND FUND FLiND FUND FUND FUND FUND
26.083 : 138.654 149.649 17.333 244.097 60,202 321.230
¢ 60 - 6 - 3 195
26.092 158,714 149,949 17.33% 244.097 60.202 521.4235
348 - 10,420 - - 1.182 151
348 - 10.420 - - 1.182 151
- 158714 139.529 - - - -

25,74 - - 17.339 244.097 $9.020 321.2M
25.744 138.714 119,529 17.339 244.097 59.020 321.274
26.092 158.714 149.949 17,339 244,097 60.202 521.425
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

DISTRICT COUNTY COUNTY
CLERK CLERK CLERK
RECORDS ELECTION HAVA
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS FUiND

CHILD
ABUSE
PREVENTION

SHERIFF'S
SPECIAL
REVENUE
FUNDS

ASSETS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ) 2,137 22.080 35.334
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net - - -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - 8 13
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - - .
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - -
INVENTORY, A1 Cost - -
PREFAID ITEMS - -

7115

1,845,416
30,134
174

649.979
55,754

TOTAL ASSETS i

[

187 22.088 35.347

7.118

2.581.457

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES. AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3 640 -
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - -
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - -
UNEARNED REVENUE - GRANTS - -

157,033
587.167

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 640 - -

744230

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOLRCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES - -

FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR:
INVENTORY $ - -
FPREPAID ITEMS - - .
RESTRICTED FOR;
PUBLIC INTEREST - 27.08% 35,347
JUDICIAL & LAW
ENFORCEMENT 1.547 .
EDUCATION & RECREATION - - -
HEALTH & WELFARE - - -
MAINTENANCE OF
STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT - - -
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - - .

1.781.433

TOTAL FUND BALANCES N 1.547 22,088 35,347

7.118

1.837.207

TOTAL UIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES 3 2.187 23.08% 35.347

7118

2.581.457
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DISTRICT

GUARDIANSHIP JINENILE COURT PROBATION
FEE DELINQUERCY RECORDS DEPARTMENT GRANT
FUND PREVENTION TECHNOLOGY FIINDS FLNDS TOTAL

190.568 82387 125,130 2,677,130 8.571.558 19.261.464

- - 6.814 - 142,277

71 3 44 930 3225 6,411

- - - 21.248

- - 179.877 382,388 1.508.157

- - - 55,754

- - - 781 - 781
190.619 82.618 125178 2.865.532 9.157.171 20.998.092
200 - 502.745 31,196 872.514

- - - 44536 184.303 875,700

- 519.735 - 519.735

675813 - £75.833

200 - 1.742.899 216,301 2.943.732

- - - 480.361 490.364

- - 490.361 490.361

- - - - 53,754

- - 781 - 781
190,419 - - - 2.570.226

- 82618 123,176 1.211,323 128,722 4.903.014

- R - - - 1,468,983

- - - - 8.427.577 8.427.577

- ; - 329.424
- (39.681) (105.990) (196.810)
190.439 82.0i8 125.176 1.122.633 8.450,309 17,563.949
190.639 82.618 123,176 2.865.532 9.157.171 20.998.092




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVYERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES:
TAXES
FEES
FINES AND FORFEITURES
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
INTEREST
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE QF STRUCTURES

AND EQUIPMENT

CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

TRANSFERSIN
TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SQURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING (Restated)

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

L%

BREATH JUVENILE
LATERAL ALCOHOL Law PROBATION &
ROAD TESTING LIBRARY DETENTION
FLIND FUND FUND FUND
- 10,936 61,600 29,883
- . 11 -
29,249 - - 248,425
1,618 15 § 2,231
30,867 11,051 61,617 280,543
. 17,575 - 283,308
- - 63,973 -
40,593 - . )
40,593 17,573 63.973 288,303
(9,726 (6,324) (2,356) (7,762)
- - - 59,244
- - (7.704)
N . ) 51,540
{9,726) (6,524) (2.356) 43,778
338,150 30,666 1,217 522,919
339,130 30,666 1,217 522,919
329,424 24,142 (1,139 566,697

36



COUNTY CLERK COUNTY COUNTY

RECORDS CLERK ASAD RECORDS
MGNT. AND RECORDS CONSTABLE MGMT. AND
PRESFRYATION ARCHIVE PCTS PRESERVATION
FLUND FUND PROGRAMN FUND

412,023 429,538 - 213,233

. - 3,577 -

] . 753,782 -
3,186 1,964 - 1631
413211 431,502 762,359 215,864
156,046 202,198 - 60,367

. . 762,359 -
156,046 202.198 762,359 50,367
239,165 229,304 - 155497
259165 229,304 - 155.497
589,613 280,577 - 509,951
589615 280,577 - 309,951
248.780 509.881 - 665443
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 390, 2013

REVENLUES:
TaXES
FEES
FINES AND FORFEITURES
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
INTEREST
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOYERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMLINT
EDUCATION ANT} RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES

AND EQUIPMENT

CAPITAL QUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) CF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMERNT

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING (Restated)

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

JUSTICE HOTEL COUNTY &
COURT OCCUPANCY DISTRICT COURT
BUILDING TAX TECENOLOGY
SECLRITY FUND FUND
- 1,291,716 -
10,858 - 7,275
- 12,038 N
401 5355 66
- 67 -
11,259 1,309,176 7,341
- - 3,644
- 993,566 -
- 993,366 3,644
11,259 313,610 3,697
- (164,433) -
- (164,433) -
11,239 151,177 3.697
83,624 1,317,806 12,954
83,624 1,317,806 12,954
94.883 1,468,983 16,651
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SHERIFF AND TAN OFTICE UNCLATMED DISTRICT JP
CONSTABLE AUTO FINDS FANILY ATTORNEY HOT COURTROOA
EDUCATION DEALER MANAGFAIENT PROTECTION FORFEITLURE CHECK TECEHNQLOGY
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
4,009 18,440 16,183 - 20,032 43,908
y - . 68,954 - y
29.231 - ; . - y
159 2,653 44 527 - 2,304
29.350 6,664 18.440 16,229 69.491 20,032 46,212
12,091 - . 15,000 81,759 5.853 27,034
32091 15.000 81,759 5,833 27,934
(2,701 6,664 18,440 1229 712,26%) 14,179 18.278
(2.701) 6.664 18,440 1.229 {12.268) 14.179 18.278
28,445 152,050 121,089 16,110 236,363 44,841 502,995
28445 152,050 12] 089 16,110 256.365 44.341 501,996
25.744 158714 139.529 17.339 244.097 59.020 521,274
[CONTINUED)]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES:
TAXES
FEES
FINES AND FORFEITURES
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
INTEREST
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES

AND EQUIPMENT

CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITLRES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS QUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOQURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING (Restated)

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

DISTRICT COUNTY COUNTY SHERIFE'S
CLERK CLERK CLERK CHILD SPECIAL
RECORDS ELECTION HAVA ABUSE REVENUE
NMANAGEMENT CONTRACTS FUND PREVENTION FUNDS
16,948 - - 2,041 373,995
- - - . 124,684
- 22,968 26,332 - 968,366
_ } . 2,059,556
2 72 151 28 4963
. , - 4,900
16950 23,040 26.503 2,069 3,576.464
- 8,864 - ; -
20,128 - - - 4,029,166
20,128 8.864 . - 4,029,166
(3.178) 14,176 26,503 2.089 {452,702)
- - - 330,000
- - - (20,330)
B} B} . 529,670
(3,178) 14,176 26,503 2,069 76,068
4725 7,912 8,844 5,049 1,760,239
4725 7912 8,844 5,049 1,760,239
1,547 22,088 35,347 7,118 1.837.207
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DISTRICT

GUARD[ANSHIP JUVENILE COURT PROBATION
FEE DELNQUENCY RECORDS DEPARTMEXNT GIANT
FUND BFREVENTION TECHNQLOGY FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL
. . . - - 1,291,716
29,140 133 32,733 3,131,320 4,864,247
- - - - - 193.648
- - - 177 1,033,489
- ; - 4,703,719 £19,004 3,639,966
802 367 439 12,713 38,006 80,947
- - - - - 1,967
29,942 302 33,224 7.849.76! 857277 16,158,980
6,300 - ; - 434275
- - - 8,146,214 934,403 14,364,433
- - . - 1,057,539
. - 356,068 336,068
. . - 40,593
6,800 - 3,146,214 1,290,473 16.232.903
23,142 502 33,224 (296,453) (433.,196) {93.928)
- 143,713 384,127 1,137,084
- - - (133.386} - (325,853
- - 10.327 354,127 811.231
23,142 502 33.224 (286.126} {49.065) 717.303
167,297 82,116 91,952 1,370,429 8,459,378 16,208,216
- - - 38,330 - 38.330
167,297 82,116 91.952 1,408,759 8499378 16.846.646
190.439 82618 125,176 1,122,633 8450309 17.563.949
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECTIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

JUVENILE
PROBATION JUVENILE
AND CONMUNITY I¥-EFOSTER JUVENILE
DETENTION-- CORRECTIONS CARE GRANT A -
STATE AID PROGRAM FUND STATE AID
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 26,954 ; 523,882
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net . . -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE ; ; 198
DUE FROM QTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 4.558 - - 119,787
PREPAID ITEMS ; ; - ;
TOTAL ASSETS $ 31,512 ; 524,080 119,787
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE g 2,291 . 217 52,431
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS . - - .
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - -
UNEARNED REVENUE 44,296 - .
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 46.587 - 217 52,43
FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR:
PREPAID [TEMS 3 ; ; ) .
RESTRICTED FOR: JUDICIAL &
LAW ENFORCEMENT . . 523,865 67,356
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (15,075) . ; :
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5 (15.075) - 523.863 67.356
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES s 31.512 ; 524.080 119.787
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

MENTALLY
INPAIRED . MENTAL
OFFENDERS COMMUNITY WONEN'S HEALTH
PROGRAMN SUFERVISION CENTER SERVICES
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 60,588 968,072 603,878 -
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net . 3,652 2,146 .
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - 722 - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - -
PREPAID ITEMS . 540 92 L
TOTAL ASSETS 5 60,588 972,986~ 606,116 .
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 3,778 241,236 75,530 5,992
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - . . 2,497
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 29,961] - 266,947 -
UNEARNED REVENUE ) 23,344 197,260 241,103 :
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 59,083 438,495 583,580 8,289
FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR
PREPAID ITEMS 5 - 540 9 .
RESTRICTED FOR: JUDICIAL &
LAW ENFORCEMENT 1,505 533,950 22,444 -
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - : - (8.289)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3 1,505 534,450 22,536 {8.389)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 60,538 972,986 606,116 -
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DwT JUVENILE DRUG JUVENILE JUVENILE JUVENILE
COMAMUNITY PRETRIAL DRUG DIVERSION ACCOUNT. TJPC ADVOCATE 2015
CORRECTIONS DIVERSION COLURT PROGRAN] 22 A INCENTIVE TOTAL
345,797 50,023 - 97,936 - - 2,677,130
1.016 - - - - 6814
- - - 10 930
- 35532 - - 179,877
149 - - - - 781
346,962 30,023 55,332 97,936 - 10 2,863,532
18.196 2,837 34,193 27,763 36,461 502,743
- - 21,339 - - 20,750 44,586
232,827 - - - - 519,735
90,541 4913 74,376 - - 675.833
331,564 2,837 60,445 102,139 - 57211 - 1,742,899
149 - - - - 781
15,249 47,166 - - - - - 1211,533
- - {4913) (4.203) - {57.201) (89.681)
15.398 47,166 {4.813) (4,203) - (57.201) - 1,122,613
346,962 50.023 55,532 97.936 10 2,863,532
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

JUVENILE
PROBATION JUVENILE
AND COMMUNITY V.E FOSTER JUVENILE
DETENTION- CORRECTIONS CARE GRANT A -
STATE AID PROGRAM FLXD STATE AJD
REVENLES:
FEES $ . - -
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 50,144 . . 119,787
INTEREST ; - 2491 ;
TOTAL REVENUES § 50,144 - 2,491 119,787
EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 5 55,443 y 59,522 52,431
CAPITAL QUTLAY ; - . .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 55.443 - 59,522 52,431
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 5 (5.299) - (57.031) 67.156
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS [N $ - -
TRANSFERS OUT ' (2,278 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (2,278 - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (5,299) (2,278) (37,031) 67,356
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING (9,776} (31,885) 580,894
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT . 34,163 -
FUND BALANCES, GCCTOBER 1 (Restated) $ (9,776) 1278 580,894
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ (15,075) ; 523,863 67.356
[CONTLNUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

MENTALLY
IMPAIRED MENTAL
OFFENDERS COMMUNITY WONMEN'S HEAILTH
PROGRAM SUPERVISION CENTER SERVICES
REVENUES:
FEES ) - 2,758,934 222,400 -
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 96,802 1,631,461 984,674 110,765
INTEREST - 9,523 - -
TOTAL REVENUES 3 96,802 4,399,918 1,207,074 110,765
EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 5 [20,017 4,066,436 1,461,240 130,331
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5 120017 4,066,436 1,461,240 130,331
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 5 (23.213) 333.482 {(234,166) (19,566)
OTHER FINANCIAL SQURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN 5 - - - -
TRANSFERS OUT - (127,646) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ) - (127,646} - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ) {23,215) 205,836 {254,166) (19,566)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 24,720 338,654 276,702 11,2717
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - - - -
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated) 5 24.720 328,654 276,702 11,277
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5 1,505 534,490 22,536 (8,289)
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DWI JUVENILE DRUG JUVENILE JLVENILE JLEVENILE
COMMUNITY PRETRIAL DRUG DIVERSION ACCOQUNT. TIPC ADVOCATE VI
CORRECTIONS DIVERSION COLURT PROGRADM] #2 A INCENTIVE TOTAL
- 69,257 - 80,692 - 46 31,131,329
108476 - 81,831 409,067 . 912,712 - 4,705,719
- - - - - 699 - 12,713
108.476 65237 81,831 439,759 - 913,457 - 7.849.761
426,589 22,09] 102.150 610,374 - 1.039.590 - 8,146,214
426,589 22,061 102,150 610,374 - 1,039,590 - 8.146,214
(118,113) 47.166 (20.319) {120.615) - (126.133) - (296.453)
- . 16,067 127,646 - - 143,713
- : 3 (6) {3.456) {133,386
- - 16,067 127.646 {6) (3,456) 10.327
(118,113) 47,166 (4,252) 7,031 (6) (126.133) (3,456) (286,125)
133,511 (661) {11,234) 6 63,932 (711) 1,370,429
- - - - - - 4,167 38.330
133,501 - (661) (11.234) 6 68,932 3436 1 408,759
15,398 47166 (4.913) (4,203) - (57.201) 1,122,633
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 31, 2015

FAMILY

GROUF SHERIFF SHERIFF
CONFERENCING TRAINING JAG DEPT
PROJECT GRANT GRANT GRANTS
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 33,500 - - -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 13 - - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - 1,949 - 18,991
TOTAL ASSETS 5 33,513 1,949 - 18,991
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE 3 - - - 862
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - 1,938 8,094 18,224
TOTAL LIABILITIES S - 1,938 8,094 19,086
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS  § - 1,949 - -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 5 - 1,949 - -
FUND BALANCES:
RESTRICTED FOR:
JUDICIAL & LAW
ENFORCEMENT 5 33,513 - - -
HEALTH & WELFARE - - - -
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - (1,938) (8,094) (95)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5 33,513 {1,938) (8,094} (95)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES i) 33,513 1,949 - 18,991
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FORENSIC

CRIME CIUME SCIENCE
SCAAP VICTIMS REGIONAL VICTINMS EMPG IVMPROVENENT
GRANT CLEARING -1 COMMUNICATION CLEARING -2 GRANT GRANT
10,578 7,697 61,641 ; 43,670 237
12 . 23 ; 35 -
- 5,779 - 10,496 - -
10,590 13,776 61,664 10,496 93,705 237
y 13,037 533 - 309 ;
- - - 9,222 ; -
- 13,037 533 9,272 309 .
10,590 739 61,131 1,274 - 237
- . - - 93,396 .
30,590 739 61,131 1,274 93,396 317
10,590 13,776 61,664 10,496 93,705 237
[CONTINUED)
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

PORT AUTO DRUG
SECURITY THEFT FEMA INTERVENTION
GRANTS GRANT EMERGENCY GRANT
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ - - 8,331,039 -
INTEREST RECETYABLE - y 3142 -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES . 29,780 366,692 4,835
TOTAL ASSETS $ - 29,780 8,700,873 4,833
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ . 4,579 - 2,923
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - 25,106 - 1912
TOTAL LIABLLITIES s - 29,775 - 4,835
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS  § . 6,759 366,692 140
TOTAL DEFERRED INFL.OWS
OF RESQURCES $ - 6,759 366,692 140
FUND BALANCES:
RESTRICTED FOR:
JUDICIAL & LAW
ENFORCEMENT $ . . - -
HEALTH & WELFARE . . 8,334,18) -
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - (6,754) - (140)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES § - (6,754 8,334,181 (140

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES ) - 29,780 8,700,873 4,835
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CHEEK

VIOLENCE VIOLENCE FAMILY SHSP & WATER AND 2015
AGAINST AGAINST TREATMENT LETPP SEWER GRANT
WOVIEN -1 WOMEN -2 COURT GRANTS PHASE 4 TOTALS
; 1,163 - 11,733 8,571,558
- - - . 3,325
17,689 5,989 5.647 114.541 582,388
17.689 7,152 5,647 126.274 9,157,171
500 7,152 1,301 - 31,196
17.189 - 2,828 100,702 183,305
17,689 7.152 4,129 100,702 216.501
- - 280 114,541 490.361
- ; 280 114,541 490,361
- y 1,238 - 128,722
. . . - 8,427,577
. . - (88.969) (105,990)
- - 1,238 (88,969) 8,450,309
17,689 7,152 5,647 126,274 9,157,171
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS

FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

FAMILY
GROLP SHERITF SHERIFF
CONFERENCING TRAINING JAG DEPT
PROJECT CRANT GRANT GRANTS

REVENUELS:

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ) - 18,077 16,171 46,096

INTEREST 15G - - -

SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 177 - -

TOTAL REVENUES 3 327 18,077 16,171 46.096

EXPENDITURES: )

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFCRCEMENT g 1412 10,833 15,347 46,600

HEALTH & WELFARE - - - -

CAPITAL QUTLAY - - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES i) 1412 10,833 15,347 46,600

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURLS 3 (1,085) 7,244 824 (504}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

TRANSFERS TN 5 11,837
TOTAL GTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES) ) 11,837
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5 (1,085) 7,244 8§24 11,333
FUND BALAMCES, BEGINNING 34,598 {9,182} {8.918) {11,428)
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5 33,513 (1,938 (8.094) {95)
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FORENSIC

CRIME CRIME SCIENCE
SCAAP VICTIMS REGIONAL YICTIMS EMPG IMPROVEMENT
GRANT CLEARING -1 COMMUNICATION CLEARING-12 GRANT GRANT
17,676 5,778 - 50,000 30,753 .
1561 4 284 y 393 8
17,837 5782 284 50,000 31,146 8
7,333 22,766 6,317 258.188 . 2,321
- - - . 42,153 .
7.553 22.766 5317 258,188 42,153 2,321
10.284 {16.984) 16,033) (208.188)  (11.007) (2313)
- 16,957 - 212.330 - .
16,587 ; 212,350 . ;
10,284 3 (6,033) 4,162 (11,007) (2.313)
20,308 736 67.164 (2.888) 104,403 2.550
30,590 739 61,131 1,274 93,396 237
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

PORT ALTO DRUG
SECURITY THEFT FEMA {(NTERVENTION
GRANTS CRANT EMERGENCY GRANT

REVENUES:

INTERGOVERNMENTAL M) 146,259 85,965 16,314 51,979

INTEREST - - 36,992 -

SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 5 146,299 85,965 53.306 51979

EXPENDITURES:

JUDICTAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 5 185,723 111,874 - 52,119

HEALTH & WELFARE - - - -

CAPITALOUTLAY - - - -

TOTAL EXFENDITURES 3 195,722 111.874 - 52,119

EXCESS (DERNCENCY) OF REVENUES

OVIER EXPENGITURES 5 {49,424) {25,90%) 53,306 {140)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LISES):

TEANSIERS IN & 20310 25770 - -
TOTAL GTHER FINANCIMG

SOURCES (USES) 3 20,330 25,770 - -
NET CHANGE INFUND BALANCES £ (29,094) (139) 53,306 (140)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 29,004 (6.613) §,280,875 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5 - (6.754) §.334,181 {140)
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CHEEK

VIQLENCE VIOLENCE FANMILY SHSP & WATER AND 013
AGAINST AGAINST TREATMENT LETPP SEMVER GRANT
WOMEN -1 WOMNEN-2 COLRY GRANTS PHASE 4 TOTALS
§0,000 5,989 30,533 59,915 157,459 §19,004
3 - - . 101 38,006
- - ; - - 177
§0,003 5.989 30,533 59,915 157.560 857277
163361 12.220 27771 . ; 934,403
- - . 59,913 334,000 156,068
163.361 12.220 21771 59,515 254,000 1290473
(83.349) {6.231) 2762 (96.440) {433.196)
60,612 5231 : 2 - 384.127
90,632 6,731 ; - . 384,127
7264 N 2,762 . (96,440 (49,069)
(7.264) - (1.524) . 7471 §.499.378
- . 1238 - (88.969) §.450.309
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities except those financed by Enterprise

Funds or Internal Service Funds. Included in this heading are the following individual
funds:

BP Settlement Shoreline - This fund is used to account for the proceeds received
related to the BP Deepwater Horizon lawsuit settlement. Planned expenditures for
these proceeds will be for the County shoreline and dune restoration project staring in
Sabine Pass to High Island.

Southeast Texas Entertainment Complex — This fund is used to account for the
construction costs of a multi-facility park which has been renamed Ford Park.

1957 Road Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for the purchase of right-of-way
for highway and utility adjustments in conjunction with the Texas State Highway
Department.

GLO Ike Round 2 — This fund is used to account for the grants from the General Land
Office for the McFaddin National Wildlife Refuge Dune Restoration project.

TCEQ — First Time Sewer - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the
installation of a low pressure sewer system to approximately 81 low income residential
customers in the Candlelight and Martel subdivisions. Funds for this project are from
penalties assessed by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

CETRZ Grant - This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures
related to the County Energy Transportation Reinvestment Zone (CETRZ) Grant from
the State of Texas. This grant will be used to rehabilitate County roads within all the
Road & Bridge precincts.

Keith Lake Fish Pass - This fund is used to account for the expenditures to construct
erosion control devices in the Keith Lake Fish Pass.




ORA Capital Grants — This fund is used to account for the grants from the Office of
Rural Affairs (ORA) and Community Development Block Grants for Disaster
Recovery Programs.

Ford Park Kayak Launch - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the
construction of the Katherine Huey Phelan Kayak Launch from funding received from
a private donation. Kayak launch will be located adjacent to the Ben J Rogers
Regional Visitors Center.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS
SEPTEMBER 34, 2015

SOUTHEAST
EP TEXAS
SETTLEMENT ENTERTAINMENT 1857 ROAD
SHORELINE COMPLEX BOXND FUND

GLOTRE
ROUND 2

ASSETS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,496,261 - 206,080
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net - - .
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 564 ; 78

572,158

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - -

TOTAL ASSETS § 1,496,825 - 206,158

572,158

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE b - - 23,813
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - “

207,441
364,717

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ - - 23.818

572,158

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- GRANTS 3 - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOQOURCES b - - -

FUND BALANCES:
RESTRICTED FOR CONSTRUCTION b - - -
COMMITTED FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS -
ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,496,825 - 182,340
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - - -

3,300,060

(3,300,060)

TOTAL FUND BALANCES § 1496825 - 182,340

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES § 1,496,825 - 206,158

572,158

110



ORA FORD PARK
TCEQ - FIRST CETRZ KEITH LAKE CAPITAL KAYAK
TIAME SEWER GRANT FISH PASS GRANTS LAUNCH TOTAL
14 - 120,329 2,322 50,044 1,875,050
. - - 20,990 - 20,990
- - 43 . 19 706
- 833,889 - 190,919 - 1,598,966
14 835,389 120,374 214,231 50,063 3,495,712
. 663,868 - 97.661 - 992,788
- 172.021 - 72,543 - 609.281
- 835.889 . 170,204 - 1,602,069
- 395,226 - ; - 395,226
- 393,226 - - - 395,226
14 - . . 50,063 50,077
- 245,822 - 395,924 - 3,941,806
. 120,374 . - 1,799,539
. (641.048) - (351,897) - (4,293,005)
14 (395.226) 120,374 44,027 50,063 1,498,417
14 835,889 120,374 214.231 50,063 3,495,712
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SOUTHEAST

BP TEXAS
SETTLEMERNT ENTERTAINMENT 1957 ROAD GLO IKE
SHORELINE COMPLEX BOND FUND ROUND 2
REVENUES:

INTERGOVERNMENTAL $ - - . 572,158

SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 1,494,942 - - -

CONTRIBUTIONS ) - - .

INTEREST 1,883 - 1,114 -

TOTAL REVENUES $ 1,496,825 - 1,114 572,158
EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY g - - 147,545 572,158
TOTAL EXPENDITURES g - - 147,545 572,158
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1,496,825 - (146,431) -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

TRANSFERS IN $ - 164,433 - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) § - 164,433 - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 1,496,825 164,433 (146,431) -
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING - (164.433) 328,771 -

FUND BALANCES, ENDING h) 1,496,825 - 182,340 -

112



ORA FORD PARK
TCEQ - FIRST CEMRZ REITH LAKE CAPITAL RKAYAK
TIME SEVWER GRANT F1SH PASS GRANTS LAUNCH TOTAL
440,663 1,564,124 2,645,095 . 5,222,040
. ) . . 1,494,942
- - - 50,000 50,000
- 1,826 24 63 5,127
440,663 1,565.950  2.645,336 50,063 6.772,109
1.038.611 2814124 2,661,441 7,233,879
1,038.611 2.814,124 2,661,441 7,233,879
- (397,948)  (1,248,174) (16,105} 50,063 {461,770)
207,722 - - - 372.155
207,722 - - - 372155
(390,226) (1,248,174} (16,105) 50,063 (89,613)
14 (5.0000 1,368,348 60,132 - 1,588.032
14 (395.226) 120374 44,027 50,063 1,498,417
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for each specific long -term debt.
These funds account for the accumulation of resources and subsequent
disbursement of such resources to pay principal, interest, and commissions.
Included in this heading are the following individual funds:

2012 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the $47,305,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
issued in May 2012.

2013 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the $1,340,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
issued in October 2013.

2011 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and
expenditures assocliated with the $5,550,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
issued in March 2011.







JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

2012 2013
REFUNDING REFUNDING
BOND BOND
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i) 823,307 54346
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 309 20
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 80,290 5,008
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 40,754 2,542
TOTAL ASSETS 3 944,660 61,9216
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 32,916 2,053
TOTAL LIABILITIES ) 32,616 2,053
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-PROPERTY TAXES § 110,244 6,876
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 3 110,244 6,876
FUND BALANCES:
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE 3 801,500 52,987
TOTAL FUND BALANCES £ 801,500 52,987

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 3 544,660 61,916
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2011

REFUNDING

BOND TOTAL
221452 1,099,105
84 413
22,3599 107,897
11.47] 54,767
255,606 1,262,182
9,265 44,234
9,265 44,234

31,031 148,151

31,031 148,151
215310 1,069,797
215310 1,069,797
255,606 1,262,182

117



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

118

2012 2013
REFUNDING  REFUNDING
BOND BOND
4,600,942 287,408
11,565 788
4,612,507 288,196
3,070,000 265,000
1,578,500 14,344
4,648,500 279.344
(35,993) 8,852
(35,993) 8,852
837,493 44,135
801,500 52,987




2011

REFUNDING
BOND TOTAL

1,293,804 6,182,154
3,208 15,561
1,297,012 6,197,715
1,085,000 4,420,000
102,200 1,695,044
1,187,200 6,115,044
109,812 82,671
109,812 82,671
105,498 987,126
215,310 1,069,797
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAF)
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

YARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS BUDGET

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 5,992,867 5,992,867 6,182,154 189,287
INTEREST 8,865 8.865 15,561 6,696
TOTAL REVENUES § 6,001,732 6,001,732 6,197,715 195,983
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 5 4,420,000 4,420,000 4,420,000 -
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,703,644 1,703,644 1,695,044 8,600
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,123,644 6,123,644 6,115,044 3,600

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES §  (121,912) (121,912} 82,671 204,583
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5 (121,912) (121,212) 82,671 204,583
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 987.126 987,126 987,126 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING kY 865,214 865.214 1,069,797 204,583
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAT)
DEBT SERVICE - 2012 REFUNDING BONDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS BUDGET

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES 5 4,460,023 4,460,023 4,600,942 140,919
INTEREST 6,500 6,500 11,565 5,065
TOTAL REVENUES § 4,466,523 4,466,523 4,612,507 145,984
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL § 3,070,000 3,070,000 3,070,000 -
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,580,800 1,580.800 1,578,500 2.300
TOTAL EXPENDITURES £ 4,650,300 4,650,800 4,648,500 2,300

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 5 (184277 (184,277) (35,993) 148,284
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE § (184277 (184,277) (35,993) 148,284
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING §37,493 837,493 837.493 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5 653,216 653.216 801,500 143.284
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)
DEBT SERVICE - 2013 REFUNDING BOND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2015

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL  WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS BUDGET

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES b 278,570 278,570 287,408 8,838
INTEREST 465 465 7838 323
TOTAL REVENUES i 279,035 279,035 288,196 0,161
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL b 265,000 265,000 265,000 -
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 18,344 18,344 14,344 4,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES b 283,344 283,344 279,344 4,000

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 3 (4.309) (4,309) 8,852 13.161
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 (4,309) (4,309) 8,852 13,161
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 44,135 44,135 44,135 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING ¥ 39.826 39,826 52,987 13,161

122



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)
DEBT SERVICE - 2011 REFUNDING BONDS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

YARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL  WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS BUDGET

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES 5 1,234,274 1,254,274 1,293,804 39,530
INTEREST 1,900 1,900 3,208 1,308
TOTAL REVENUES 5 1,256,174 1,236,174 1,297,012 40,858
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL $ 1,085,000 1,085,000 1,085,000 -
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 104,500 104,500 102,200 2,500
TOTAL EXPENDITURES § 1,189,500 1,189,300 1,187,200 2,300

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES s 66,674 66.674 109,812 43,158
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 66,674 66,674 109,812 43,138
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 105,498 105,498 105,498 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 172,172 172,172 215,510 43,138
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services
provided by one department or agency to other agencies of the government and to other
government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. Included in this heading are the
following individual funds:

Liability Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for the County’s contribution
and payment for liability claims.

Workers’ Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for the County’s
contribution and payment for workers’ compensation claims.

Southeast Texas Government Emplovee Benefits Pool — This fund is used to
account for the County’s group health insurance program, which includes
comprehensive major medical and dental care.




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
SOUTHEAST
LIABILITY WORKERS' TEXAS GOVERNMENT
INSURANCE COMPENSATION EMPLOYEL BENETITS
FUND TUND FOOQL FUND TOTAL
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,622,253 876,664 - 2,498,917
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - - 29,389 29,389
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 253 331 - 584
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - 170,370 170,370
INSURANCE DEPQSIT - 75,500 - 75,500
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,622,506 952,495 199,759 2,774,760
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ - - 18,704 18,704
CLAMMS LIABILITY 1,308,975 536,223 840,425 2,685,623
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - 2,150,513 2,150,513
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1.308975 536,223 3,009,644 4.854,842
NET POSITION:
UNRESTRICTED $ 313,531 416,272 (2,809.883) (2,080,082)
TOTAL NET POSITION hS 313,531 416,272 (2,509,885} (2,080,082)
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SOUTHEAST
LIABILITY WORKERS' TEXAS GOYERNMENT
INSURANCE COMPENSATION EMPLOYEE BENEFETS
FUND FUND POOL FUND TOTAL

QPERATING REVENUES:

EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS $ - - 2,156,897 2,156,897
CBARGES FOR SERVICES 1,660,000 500,000 14,825,217 16,985,217
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES S 1,660,000 500,000 16,982,114 19,142,114
OPERATING EXPENSES:
ADMINISTRATIVE g - - 1,782,985 1,782,985
INCURRED & ESTIMATED CLAIMS 1,327,720 864,226 18,033,007 20,224 953
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES § 1,327,720 864,226 19,815,992 22,007,938
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) § 332,280 (364,226) (2,833.878)  (2.865,824)

NONOPERATING REVENUES:

INTEREST $ 1,439 3,209 43 4,691
REFUNDS AND RECOVERIES - 53 524,697 524,760
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES £ 1,439 3272 524,740 529,451
CBANGE IN NET POSITION 5 333,719 (360,954) (2,309.138) (2,336,373}
NET POSTTION, BEGINNING {20,188) 777,226 (500,747 256,291
NET POSITION, ENDING $  313.331 416,272 {2,809.885)  (2,080,082)
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

CaSH FLOWS FROM OPERATING aCTIVITIES:

RECEIPTS FROM CUSTOMERS AND USERS

RECEIPTS FROM EMPLOYEES

PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

INTERNAL ACTIVITY-RECEIPTS{PAYMENTS) FROM
(TO) OTHER FUNDS

CLAIMS PAID

OTHER RECEIPTS

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
INTEREST

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

LT INCREASE (DECREASE) [N CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGTXNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCONME(LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED{USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENLES
CHANGES [N ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS RECETVABLE
INSURANCE DEPOSIT
DUF FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
CLAIMS LIABILITY

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SOUTHEAST
LIABILITY WORKERS TEXAS GOVERNMENT
INSURANCE COMNPENSATION EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FUXD FUND POOL FUND TOTAL

- - 1,615,524 1.615,524

; . 2,158,010 2,158,010
. y (1,780,542)  (1,780,542)
1,660,000 500,000 15,408,110 17,568,110
(389.841) (724,047) (18,973.232)  (20.087.120)

- 63 524.846 524.906
1,270,159 {223.984) (1.047.284) (1.109)

1,289 2,966 352 4,607
1,289 2.966 352 4.607

1,271,448 {221,018) (1,046.,932) 3498

350,305 1.097.682 1,046.932 2495419
1.622.253 §76,664 - 2498917
332,280 {164,226) (2.833.87%)  (2.865,824)

; 63 524,697 524,760

; . 1,262 1.262

- - 47,902 47,502

; . 2,443 2,443

637,879 140,179 (940,225) 137.833
1.270,159 {223,984) {1.047.284) (1.105)







FIDUCIARY FUNDS



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as a trustee or
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other units of government. Such
funds are operated by carrying out specific terms of trust indentures, ordinances, grant
requirements, or other governing regulations. Included in this heading are the
following individual funds:

Treasurer Maintained Fund - This fund is used to account for various monies
deposited with the County Treasurer for distribution to other individuals and/or
governmetit entities.

County Clerk Fund - This fund 1s used to account for the collection and distribution
of money held in trust by the Clerk of the County Courts.

District Clerk Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution
of the money held in trust by the Clerk of the District Courts.

Sheriff’s Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of
money held in trust by the Sheriff.

Justice of the Peace Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money held in trust by the Justices of the Peace.

Tax Assessor/Collector Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money held in trust by the Tax Assessor/Collector .

District Attorney’s Seizure Fund - This fund is used to account for the seizure and
subsequent distribution of seized personal property.

Community Supervision Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection
and distribution of money held in trust by the Community Supervision Department.

Juvenile Probation Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money held in trust by the Juvenile Probation Department.

Flexible Spending - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of
money collected under the Internal Revenue Code Section 125 benefit plan.




Women’s Center Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money held in trust by the Women’s Center .







JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 340, 2015

TREASURER COUNTY DISTRICT JUSTICE OF
MAINTAINED CLERK CLERK SHERIFFS THE PEACE
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS - OCTOBER 1, 2014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 395.279 4.005,141 6.396.417 412,763 185.601
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 7.410 - - - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 341.282 - 68.294 - -
TOTAL 743.971 4005141 6464711 412,765 185.601
ADDITIONS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,017,335 4.409.929 5,919,386 5,123,427 3.2797.384
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 6,060 - - - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 374,413 - 47.508 - -
TOTAL 2.397.82%8 4.409.929 3.966,594 5.123.427 31.277.384
DELETIONS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,009.664 4.703,872 6,858,479 5.273.568 3.303,551
ACCOUNTS RECETVABLE. Net 7410 - - - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 372.968 - 68.204 - -
TOTAL 2.190,042 4.703.872 6.926.773 3.273.568 3.303,551
ASSETS - SEPTEMBER 30. 2013
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 402.970 3.711.198 5.457.324 262.624 159,434
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 6.060 - - - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 342.927 - 47.508 -
TOTAL ASSETS 751,757 1711.198 5.504.832 262.624 139.434
LIABILITIES - OCTOBER 1.2014
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 248,761 710851 6.398.355 357120 33212
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 493210 66.896 66.136 53.643 152.338
OTHER PAYABLES - 3.227.394 - - -
TOTAL 743.971 4.003.141 6.464.711 412.763 183.601
ADDITIONS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 117,510 115,445 4,135,455 1,801.468 281.287
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTALENTITIES 1,900,444 63.590 97.031 £52.462 134,294
OTHER PAY ABLES - 334.674 - - -
TOTAL 2.018.354 1,017,709 4.236.486 1.863.930 415.681
DELETIONS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 110,284 207978 5,113.259 1,958 426 289.460
DUE TQ OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1.900.284 66,896 21,106 55.645 152.388
OTHER PAYABLES - 1.036.778 - - -
TOTAL 2.010.568 1,311,652 5,196,363 2.014.071 441.848
LIABILITIES - SEPTEMBER 3{. 2015
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 256,387 622,318 5,422,551 200,162 25,040
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 495,370 63,590 B2281 62,462 134,394
OTHER PAYABLES - 3.025,290 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 751,757 3711.198 5.504.837 262.624 159.434
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TAX ASSESSQR DISTRICT COMMUERNITY JUVENILE FLEXIBLE WOMEN'S TOTAL
COLLECTOR ATTORNEY'S SUPERVISION PROBATION SFENDING CENTER AGENCY

FUND SEIZURE FUND TRUST FUND TRUST FLND FUND TRUST FUND FUNDS
4242100 168,377 193959 3.803 27.523 23,902 16.255.869
. . . ; - 7.410
- - - - 1.250 - 410,866
4.243.100 168.277 193.959 3.803 28.815 71002 16.674.145
566,752,200 384.661 5.118.921 21.148 109982 479,445 623.813.838
. i . ; 6.060
- - - - 2.616 : 424.517
386,752,200 384.66! 5.118.921 21.148 312.568 479.443 614.244.435
395.971.835 152.560 5.077.228 20,668 316,561 488.923 £24.177,031
, . i ; 7410
- - - - 1.290 3 442.552
355.571.855 153,560 5.077.228 20.668 317.851 458,925 624.627.393
5.013.445 399.478 435,652 4.283 20.946 14.422 15.891.776
_ N . ; 6.060
3 . B - 2.616 - 392.851
5.023.445 399.478 435.632 4.283 13,562 14,422 16.290.687
4.243,100 168.377 391.959 1,802 28.815 21902 12.610.256
- - - 836,405
- - - - - ] 3.227.394
4.243.100 168.377 391959 1,303 28815 23.902 16.674.145
567.313,473 284,661 5.119.276 23682 314,905 479,415 610,295,007
- - - - 2.257.921
- - - - - - §34.674
387513471 384.661 5.119.276 12,682 114.905 479445 613.387.602
596,733,128 153.560 5.077.583 23202 120,158 488,925 610.477,963
. ) - 2.256.319
N ) . ; ; ; 1.036.778
596.733.128 153.560 5.077.583 11202 320158 488.925 613.771.060
5,023,445 399,478 435.652 4283 23.562 14.422 12.427.300
- - - - 838.097
. ) . - 3.025.290
5.023.445 399.478 415,652 4.283 23.562 14422 16.290.637
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY SOURCE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

TOTAL

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS:

LAND $ 3,840,787

INFRASTRUCTURE 59,114,166

BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 102,718,113

EQUIPMENT 41,301,248

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19,964,968
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 226,939,282

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE:

GENERAL FUND 3 88,061,474
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 33,646,254
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 102,625,998
GIFTS 2,605,556

$ 226,939,282
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE CPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

FUNCTION LAND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL GOVERNMENT b - $ -
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 45,446 -
HEATLTH & WELFARE 14,000 -
MATINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES AND
EQUIPMENT 3,781,341 59,114,166
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS  § 3,840,787 5 59,114,166




BUILDINGS & CONSTRUCTION
IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT IN PROGRESS TOTAL
$ 475,678 5 6,314,757 5 - § 6,790,435
31,377,253 19,553,531 61,463 51,037,693
1,545,740 1,033,203 1,887,342 4,480,285
69,319,442 14,399,757 18,016,163 164,630,869
$ 102,718,113 $ 41,301,248 5 19,964,968 & 226,939,282
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMEER 30, 2015

BALANCE BALANCE
FUNCTION 10/1/2014 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS  TRANSFERS 973072015

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 5245959 5 1,548,765 % (304,289)  § - $ 6790433

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 50,112,416 1,729,309 (804,032) . 51.037,693

HEALTH AND WELFARE 2,706,612 1,895,933 (122.260) - 4,480,285
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES AND

EQUIPMENT 156 081,132 8,616,575 (96,838) - 164,630,869

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS  $2)4146.119  § 14,120,582 $  (1327418) & . $226,939.282
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Jefferson County, Texas comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
County's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 139

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the County's financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Trends 146
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess
the County's most significant local revenue source, the property
tax.

Debt Capacity 150
These schedules present information to help the reader access
the affordability of the County's current levels of owtstanding
debt and the County's ability to issue additional debt in the
Jfuture.

Demographic and Economic Information 154
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within which the
County’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 156
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help
the reader understand how the information in the County's
Jfinancial report relates to the services the County provides and
the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevani year.
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TABLE |
AEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NET POSITION BY COMPONLENT
LAST TEN F1SCAL YEARS
{accrunl bnsts of accounting)

Iisenl ¥Year

2006 2007 ** 2008 2000 2010 A1 Gl 012 013 2014 s

Governmental activities:

Nel lovesiment in cpilal asseis 51600015 + 56,750,081 % 02450468 3 08,242,040 3 71336406 F 81,581,324 £ 83,640.727 ¥ 84,123857 $ R5005478 S 91514603

Restricled 1,955,825 3,991 898 7,893,536 10,615,478 13,851,538 18,910,796 18017919 25,433,198 28,919,622 24,693,909

Unresiricted (20,540.936) _ (16820422) (17,964,265} (21,890,574) {35,286,048) (98,931,222) {43.402,923) {53,259.615) (64,427876)  (106.%62,028)
Total governmental activilies nel position $ 26,014,204 43,914,557 F 52,379,739 550,906,944 $ 49001956 $ 51,503,398 $ 57255723 $ 56,297,440 % 49 587,224 £ 1] 547 584
Busisess-ype activitics:

Nel Investment in capilal agsels 3 RBEV6,715 % 89.080,109 5 §8AR22IT 5§ 93,237,299 3 91,674403 3 90.405,368 % 90.441,044 3 87,043,444 $ 84,297,573 % 83107007

Unrestricted {175,008) (760424) 133,397 1,425,854 2,114,006 37,0406 620,615 592,100 479,535 {34.858)
Tolal busiogss-1ype activities net pogition % 88,701,617 F REIIV085 % BR.OISGIA § 94.6063.153 3 93,788.469 § 90842414 £ 01,061,679 § 87635744 $ 84777108 5 82472239
Reclassilications:

Nel Investment in capital pssels 5 (64,799,956) % (64,096,344} 5 (03,01G,132)  F {GIR55.7200 & (60,663,707)  § (57.637.497) % (50438282) % (40,786,66n) % (43.072.050) % (19,220,834)

Unrestricled 064,799,956 04,090,344 63,006,132 61,855,720 60,663,707 57,637,407 50438382 46,786,660 43.072.050 319,220,834
Toaial rectassifications b - by - 3 - s - 5 - $ - 3 = g - $ R $ R
Primary government;

Net Tuyestment in capital assels b 75,676,774 $ 81,733846 % 87916553 $ 90,623.619 § 102,347 102 F 114411695 $ 122,643,489 % 124,380,635 £ 120321000 £ 137,700,860

Restrieted 31955825 3,903,898 7,893,536 10615478 11,851,538 18.210,790 18,017,919 25433,198 28,919,622 24,695,909

Unrestricled 15,081,922 46,506,498 45,185,204 41,391,000 27,491,725 0,083,321 7,655,094 (5.880,647)  (20,876.291) {68,370,952)
Totzl primary govenimenl nel posilion $114.716,521 132234242 § 119,993 353 5 15160097 5 143,690425 % 142,4053812 5 148,317,402 § 143,931, 1R 5 114,364,332 $ 94019823

Note: “T'he reclassification is for 1he debl associaled with ths constmction of Furd Park. The asscts are accomnled
for in 1he Busincss-lype activilies eolunm and the debl is accounted Tor in the Governmenlal aclivities column,

** In 2007, the Southeast Texas Govennment Employes Beoclits Poal Fund was reclassified lrom au Enterprise Fumnd w an Inlemal Service Fund,
~ GASB 54 was implamnented.
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TARLE 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CHANGES N NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(auccrual Basis of acconnting;

Tigenl Year

2008 2007 - 2004 2009 2010 2011 IE Z613 2014 2015
Typenses
Govermmental activitics:
General Govermenl 5 13,048,703 3 20,008,549 5 20,360,640 kY 39403060 £ 33,344,391 3 710,153 5 12862570 % 173253918 5 42,911,859 4 40,203,444
Jndicial and Low Caforeenem 55,468,283 59,282,180 69, 17042) 7,054,743 75939112 70,819,206 81,522,130 §5.995,5%0 82,038,360 80,018,632
Cduention nngd Recrention 1,140,083 [NRER BV 1,931,084 Lol 1,037,026 1313440 1LYI5SI9 1,169,159 1,416,517 1,425,530
Health and Wellare $.230.0706 3.784.296 10,104,601 11,205,583 10,524,644 9,704,323 17,758,075 10,217,065 10,570,568 L3620l
Maintenonee - Equipmenl aid Strictines 17,442.781 18,185,968 21118467 33,000,580 18.724,928 13,365.410 15,352,076 17,162,873 14,859,087 14,076,436
Tnterest nnd Charges on Long-ierm Del A, £28.450 1985181 AR04.914 1 3587860 A 188354 1,236,312 1,762,428 LollLosl 1,423,776
Toral govermiental nalivities cipenses h 131,5n7.A436 5 111,960,122 k3 PR N b 5 141,057,971 b 139, 300LHSO 3 150,947.87.1 b3 154,461,032 b3 153,450,702 b 147,510,238
Business«lype aclivilies:
Aipon 5 4,117,325 3 4.219.627 % 4902822 3 4710467 b 5,005,041 b3 5,500,746 % 6,618,147 b 7.386,238 g 6,543,749 5 5891518
Eniertoinmemt Complex TANL7TT 8.685,343 7.6:18,62 7.077.002 7,889,891 0,860,772 L2458 457 9.771.707 9.760.675 1752015
Heallh Insursnee Risk Moal 10.101.217 = - - B - - - -
Total Business-type expenses by 21.611.09 3 12004970 3 | Rd_ 8 I b 12,985,832 b3 12,173,538 i) 16,866,704 $ 17.157.945 5 16704424 5 1L.647,00)
Total pronary gevenbnenl expoises 5 131,178,733 5 124,863,092 5 |3 A d il 3 §¥ 5 3 % 151,674,424 5 167,814,570 b3 171,618,973 5 170,153,120 _!- il 37,1
Propmm Revemues
Govamnrenial act 5
Charges [or seivices
General Governmeni k3 46160010 S 69116% 8 6037669 5 S04 & 16126% % §218241 8 2076015 & 12710674 & 0234887 % 4,407,501
Judicil andd Law Moforcement 11.557.628 11,434,794 10,700,195 10,401,533 9.270,538 267,128 2,839,350 9,234 538 10.067.596 10.602.40n
Educaiion and Recremion 13468 191,921 HB.82 208,036 101,907 $6.010 74,005 B4.613 Hn517 73,649
Health and Wetlre 93,463 806231 200 30557 335,343 401920 169503 ELERT 430,012 411,006
Maintenance - Equipment and Sinuctires 15.177.662 §.230.587 5,768,715 8.447.195 6.328.04 1 4.0:7.555 5302120 5.837.681 5535713 SARIAST
Operating grmts and contrilaions 36, 71.964 11, 718420 14,050,116 AR927 080 15 .6407.904 16,494 813 i8.243,070 19150824 13417,014 10,935,535
Capital granis ondd contributions 2114187 1.200.133 20,3497 037,390 2,136,830 8,991.187 11,038,532 5.232.624 4.287.420 B711.241
Total governmeninl nclivilies program revenaes _$ 70,606,382 b 20,867,762 ¥ A7.0606,523 b 00,066,741 b 41,940,304 ¥ A7, 018 5863 » 51,922,802 B 47,202,560 5 40039.179 b 0913497
Dusiness-lype nolivities:
Charges for survices:
Airport % 2,003,193 £ 2,407,949 $ 3,269,502 b3 2,999 857 5 2897411 b1 LUSEL60 $ 3,712,848 g 3978820 13 4.526.3241 $ 1493.60%6
Emenaimign Comples 2.018.548 3.9 d67 300942 3716433 3,684,635 2,041,861 6,274,380 5,536,308 5,504,080 445,635
Tleaith losurnnee Risk ool 10,9731 699 - - - - - - - e .
Operating grmnis and contributions 1,390,756 - - - . . - = 3
Capita granis and contribuiliens 4,395,052 1,725,475 2 740 002 2145711 1,100,900 1,960,880 913,357 131.‘”3'_ _
Toial business-1ype aclivilics program revenies _§ 121,278 5 10,057.89¢ 3 G454 3 $ 8721917 & PALNERY 8 L0808 8 10458485 £ 10,322,428 §
Tonal prinsary government (RogEm revenics § 92.977.40060 b 49.925.67] 5 46,681,969 5 5 30,663,050 b $3,051.770 5 GOSTIL0I0 5 57.661.031 5 50,301,007 b
Mel (expense)revenie
Govermnenial activities 3 (60.961.05:h s (72002300 3 $(00406,230)  § (102.117.662) % {90,3582.000) 8 (960250700 S (107258 467) S (1211523 8§ {106,596,791)
Tnsiness-lype avilvitis 739,959 2.347.07 o iMLHe (4,258.035) (5.240.6-15} (1.918.590) 16,099,460} (6.381,9%) {4,264 971)
Total primary govermmen) Rt expense [ S L D D I (F4949.459 & 3 (5.115,10d) 8 (106375717) § (966220481 5 (IHSa3660e) 8 (113957927 8 (1IBF93E1% & (DIEEG, ()
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Genernl Revennes wod Other Changes in Net Position

Governmemal nclivilics:
Taxes
I'roperly toxes
Sules (axes
Alcohelic Devernge Tax
lotel Oceupancy Tax
Inveshoent comings
Miscellancons
Translers
Tolal governmental aclivities
Business-1ype aclivilies:
luveshinent earnings
Misgellangeus
Trimsfers
Tatal Lusin

s-1yC achivilies
Total primary gavernmen

Chanpes in Net Posilion
Governmenlal activitics
Bisiness-1ype aclivites
Total primary governmenl

2016 2007 ** 2008 2009 2010 2001 2012 201} pIIE} s
¥ 15016097 k) 65.719.329 $ 72015800 75616007 5 75407511 1 73.058,15 % 716013 3 1,036,649 3§ 84,616,538 ¥ S1122.853
RUERT K] 21,054,606 23,906,777 30410,633 21,361,596 20961453 23864675 24,695,194 24,064,857 21,047,280
614474 503,104 506,047 614,474 575928 547.608 134 983 435,162 614,284 636,678
1,294,063 971,509 LO1LSY? 1,294,063 $93.234 981.619 1,064,165 L3651 11503823 121,716
1,735,655 3370514 2871285 842455 02,735 266.118 541,703 B/INAT2 311540 168,561
09557 29,173 26,005 24,164 25,206 35018 0253 20686
(4,805,971} {3.087.830) (3.130.199) (2.27).146) (4.182.56:) (1.223.628) (3.470.353} [2.594492)

3 IssrAN08 % 105,119,195 8§ 95230900 3 936670969 10121186 S 0316618 _§ 107,017,710 3§

§ 15,156 b 18,015 3 .A67 230§ 338 3 PRUFL - 913 5 9 % 550 % 788
175,687 - 133 4.192 A%.83d 20,405 71050 49,628 32457 52.200
4,805,971 2.086,110 3,762,155 3.330:1499 227140 4,183,506 3,221,628 3470.353 2,594,492
i ST 8 2105025 % 771,767 ] ] 2200590 8 425649 _§ 3273515 % 331360 8 2.647.540
§  lI0ETLY22 $ U2AST1LI0 0 & 1001200403 - 95962559 §  105469.63% % 109340143 % g0 8 105,168,838
§ dd F11,854 3 13,259,775 % 8.165,182 40632045 3 16.780.762)  § 2285966 % 5138116 5 (M40 § [CREJAR-TRY . (374,500
5756973 (742,054) 295929 6.0:17,53% (B 74.684) 12.946.055) (662,147) (3.425.935) (2.858,636) (1.617.433)
0 MILATOEYT S 17517721 _§ [RINITN 10,700,484 § (7.635:10) _§ (66D.089) 4335000 % {1.167.784) _§ (8.952.49) & 12.191.930)

*& In 2007, ihe Sonthens| Tesas Govermaeol Employer ienelits Poel Fund wis reckissificd Trom an Boterprise Fund (oo an lieme)

Service Fund.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOCURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE 3

Alcoholic Hotel

Fiscal Beverage Occupancy

Year Property Tax Sales Tax Tax Tax Total
2006 § 61,247,030 $ 20,150,358 § 494,201 § 894,368 § 73,420,254
2007 65,719,324 21,654,606 503,134 873,569 82,785,957
2008 72,615,806 23,906,777 506,047 1,011,577 88,850,633
2009 75,616,097 30,410,633 614,474 1,294,063 98,040,207
2010 75,407,511 21,361,596 575,928 893,234 107,935,267
2011 73,158,156 20,961,453 547,605 981,619 98,238,269
2012 79,416,013 23,864,675 484,988 1,064,165 95,648,833
2013 83,036,649 24,695,194 475,162 1,015,651 104,829,841
2014 84,616,538 24,064,857 614,384 1,150,383 110,446,162
2015 83,122,853 23,047,286 656,678 1,291,716 108,118,533
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modilicd accrual basis of accounting)

I'iscal Year

TABLE 4

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 o0nn 012 013 2014 2018
General Fund;
Reserved $ 1101397 £ 1,196,058 3 1124272 5 1,247,082 $ 1,107,057
Unreserved 19,445,189 28,724,474 31,324 562 37,639,200 14,899,538
Nonspendable 1,023,855 898,530 1.043,407 897.102 873,260
Assigned 3,482,075 2,295,347 4,312,676 10,082,383 9,652,977
Unagsigned 31,886,947 39,034,450 41,269,536 16,284,915 37,054,620
Total general fund $ 20,546,580 $ 29,920,532  § 32.448.834  § 35.BB6,BEZ % 36,006,595  $ 36,302,877  $ 42 22H33T ¥ 46,625,619 % 47,204,400  § 47,880.857
All other govermniental limds:
Reserved $ 13,958,005 $ 3,994,377 ¥ 7.895.95) 3 10,617,541 % 13,853,088
Unreserved, reported in;
z Special revenue funds 16,985,952 17,623,438 12,483,025 14,975,902 15,625,403
Lo Capital project lunds - (1.618) (1,618) - -
Debt serviee {tinds 826,359 482,912 287,948 370,688 186,623
Nonspendable 9,130 58,197 41,047 49,781 56,535
Restrcied 17,397,567 18,1 16,476 25,561,944 28,846,726 24,613,120
Commitled 5,150,723 31047323 1,902,675 2,919,885 6,649,085
Assigned 4,367,061 8,499,277 2064217 1.097.319 1,799,539
Unassigned (Deficiy) {4,832,6014) (2,670,874) {787,11R) (2,925,831) {4,489.815)
Tolal all other governmental funds  § 21,771,306 $ 22,101,109 § 20,665308 & 25970,131 § 29,665,114 $ 22,591,867 % 27050399  § 28,782,769 & 30,587,830 § 28,628,404

~GASB Statgment 54 was implementaled Jor lisenl year 2011 which changed (he classification of Timd balance amounts,
I'rior year amounts have not been restated or the implementation ol Stalement 54.
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REVENULES:

Property Taxes

Sales Taves

fees

Licenses
Inlergovermneital
Sales, Renia! & Services
lines and Forfeitures
Interesi

Miscellancous
Contributions and Denations
Total Revenucs

EXPENDITURES:
Greneral Govermnent
Jughicial and Law Enfircement
Education and Revreaton
Tealth and Welfare
taintenance af Sivactuees asd Eruijpment
Capital Quilay
Debl Services

Principnl

Interest and Commission
‘Total Expenditures

Eacess (Deficiency) of Revenoes
Dver Bxpenditures

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUKDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{modilieil uccrnal basis of acconnting)

Fiscal Yeor

TANLE 3

2106 2007 o4 200y T 2010 22 2013 2014 s

3 63,103.193 5 65,071,514 F FLIIh 1Y ] F3012.693 5 TA.995,020 b3 72,950,164 % T9.4:6,3 186 5 82,501,407 5 $4,202,722 |3 §2,550,758
215389277 241301309 25,434,401 LERIL R 32830758 22.490,677 25,411,828 26,186,007 25829624 24,995,680
12,752,283 11,232,594 13,844,304 1372000 £1,247.758 13.176.331 13,056,182 13.161.871 J3.81 818 14,317,616
925,438 423,02 409,386 447,856 153,002 407,512 465,720 500,148 450,186 459,194
39001,714 12962160 14,315,347 30,545,280 17,890,178 23206710 30,138,180 23,807,603 18,488,048 16,668,364
4,983,482 5,486,288 A4,173,703 5.5585420 1,073,201 2,827,482 1819610 2,369,016 3,053,808 4,754,414
1,338,886 1,008,196 2181,478 2076417 2,199,538 2,072,725 2,130,801 2.074,656 1,900,630 2,120,860
2761219 1083938 1236357 1,250,787 602,120 273177 536,993 254,297 0TAN 178,763
02,805 17.539 17,936 275 26095 2,104 25,200 35,918 30,353 294495
10196 18.968 4,016 1315190 KNy A0 1 1,412,098 4,700 184,819 37,842

S 16102 & 126435819 SO M5 & 162898594 5 W06 S 37452084 5 (56444954 § 152017333 0% 48 34Uodd § 146,752,940
3 15361339 & 17,962,216 $ 19.587.891 S L5450 & 20,853,875 % 0474698 % 0,252981 % 21232703 8 2466068 % 23,786,927
33,845 433 60,795,554 6,720,438 64,656,933 F2502,150 TVOB1.968 93,077 51,561,028 80,101,132 R0.546816
1,137,019 1,717,102 LY15.987 1,579.264 1.61:.58% 1,298,502 1,204,508 1.361.048 1,409,870 1439979
8,256,283 3,194,712 10,024,011 10,600,245 10,576,843 9,538,111 10,245,286 10,622,598 10,410,820 10479.518
43,799,011 15,830,658 19,851,054 A48 17,123,159 12,540110 12,115,480 11,792.372 12,677,678 12,178,205
4,776.39) 3000050 2016,129 4,076.087 T7.218.487 17,434,755 11913277 6.777.118 8270012 12,829,173
1.890.000 4,045,000 2510000 Aabinioun 2,760.000 4.542.070 S$3.7M 841 4,334,169 4,498,094 4,420,000
4.084,519 3,538,978 3,794,062 1.671,261 1.538.141 3.530.237 4.123.028 1.076.429 1.932.680 1.695.0d4
£ 135159035 5 116,793,960 $ 0120426472 % 149458.68% § 137187243 % 1492843651 5 195720471 F 142672765 S 141961083 § 147,375,642
% 12,951,199 & 9.630 859 k3 4,696,779 % 12.939,911 3 (747,847) % (5.391467) 5 (A0275520) 8 9344768 % 6,386.201 5 (622.092)
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OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transicr In 5 3308237 § 2101422 8147770 % 10207060 & 8491580 % 185000 % 6,709,370 % 6,590,699 % 3.M0,045 1,598,717
Transfer Cut (10.51-1.208) (5.1R7.5312) {11909 931 (13,954,800 (11L.R21.779) (A.6:13,785) (2.521.051) {9.739.37N (8.167.733) {1.064.677)
Proceeds Irom Sale of Capilo) Assels - . e = 201 L000 - - - - -
Capital Lepse Cliligntinns = & 3 3 1,751,957 - - 1,207,363
Insurance Procecds TLB.000 2.130.000 137,577 1.556,512 1314011 - - - -
Isswance of Debi - - - - 5,550,004 47,308 (08 - 1.320.000
Premium on Defil fssued - - 9,281 4.970.322 - - -
Payment (o Refanding Dond Kscrow Agent - - - - - 15.672,472) - - (1.298.1u%)
Tolal Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5 4994029 § &1.880 {3.004.278) ¥ (.1313nm % 1846769 % (670974) 3 49460941 _§ (1.198.678) 3 (2.415.880) (758,597}
Nel Change In Fund Balances S 15045218 % 0 3, 74% 1,092,301 §  11LR08.61I 5 1098023 & (60624413 % 10185421 % 6.146.040 5 3.570.331 (1.08),2R9)
Deln Service As A Percomage of
Noncapinl Txpenditmes 0.1% T.M% 6 0% 3.3 3.8% 6.0% A20% 1.6% 4.7% 4.6%
ARFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{moililied neernn) hasis of necounling)

Iaseal Alcolwnlic 1Intel Qecupancy

Year Peaperty Tax Sales ‘I'ny Bevernpe Tux Tnx Tolat

2006 $61.103,192 $20.130.338 5 494,201 g R0d 268 82,642,120

2007 65.071.514 21,654,606 0013 973500 $8,202.521

BLIH 71,316,192 23.006,777 S0o047 L0 LATT 96,941,594

BT} 75912693 30410613 514,474 1,294,061 108231863

e 75995020 21361590 575,928 893,234 98,825,778

2011 72,959 364 209061452 547.605 9R1.619 93,450,011

32 79.446.316 21,864,078 ARd,98R 1.00d, 163 104,860,144

2003 §2,593,407 24,695,104 475,162 Lol5.058 HR79.414

2014 $4.262.732 24,064 857 414,384 1,150,383 110,452,346

2015 ¥2.850.758 23,007,286 056,678 1.291.716 107,516_438
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
ASSESSED VALUE AND CSTIMATED ACTUAL VALUL OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE®

IFiseal Total Estimated Assessed
Year Real Property Personal Properiy Less: Total Taxnble Dircet Actual Valuc (n) as a
Ended Residential Commercial Molor Tax Excmpt Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of
September 30 Property Property Yehicles Other Reat Property Value Rate Value Actual Value
2006 5,763,919,286 $ 8,244,921,075 ¥ 53,451,410 $3,377,709,770 % 3,069,336,201 % 14,370,665,340  $0.425 14,455,989,770 82.89%
2007 5,433,538,560 10,360,470,535 54,880,880 3,872,073.860 3,180.724,674 16,540,248,161 (0.400 16,560,749,332 83.98%
2008 0,729,159,173 I1,409,878,641 62,731,150 4,196,575,015 3,824,188,028 18,574,205,991 0.390 18,879,604,039 84.29%
2009 7,717,517,403 12,524,372,020 63,467,330 4,907,849,539 4,416.709,776 20,796,496,516 0.365 21,244,031,039 84.206%
2010 7.848,755,180 11,452,043,060 59,394,290 4,831,1378,530 3,053,531,674 21,138,044,986 0.365 21,337,887.316 58.20%
2011 3,042,282 874 12,128,893,349 47,961,490 4,820,6%9,110 2,904,361,132 22,135,465,691 0.365 22,248,999.610 K8.85%
2012 7.989,089,195 12,510,887,710 51,129,790 5.421,135,950 2,819,185,882 23,153,056,763 0.365 23,199,553,509 89.32%
2013 7,912,100,439 14,408,052,759 62,242,770 6,008,922,220 3,198,328,907 25,252,989,281 0.365 25,274,550,281 BR.83%
2014 7,974,453,458 17,857,917,342 66,248,570 6,675,937,170 6,667,443,764 25,907,112,776 0.365 25,914,418,662 79.55%
2015 8,081,673,579 16,701,727,909 68,532,930 6,926,838,120 6,385,170,071 25,393,602,467 0.365 25,404,515,574 79.94%

Source: Jefferson County Appraisal District

Note: Property in the county is reassessed annually. The county assesses property at 100% ol actual value for all types of real and personal property.
IHowcever, each homeslead residential property can ouly increase by a maximum of 0% in any given year. Estimated actual value is caleulated by
addling baek the Joss to the limit on homestead residential properties to the Lolal taxable assessed value. Tax rates are per $100 of nssessed value.

(a) Ineludes tax-cxempt property.
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TABLE7
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING (a) GOVERNVIENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Overlapping Rates
Cities Schaol Districts
Total Dircct
Debt Total Debt Tatal Dcbt Total &

Fiscal Operating Service County Operating Serviee City Operating Scrvice School Special  Overlapping
Year Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Districts Rates
2006 ¥ 0375 § 0050 % 0.425 3 0.40¢ 0278 $0677 % 1491 F0.136 $1.627 $0216 8§ 2.945
2007 0.355 0.045 0.400 0420 0.232 0.652 1311 0.119 1.430 0.216 2.698
2008 0.353 0.037 0.390 0419 0.187 0.606 1.077 0.144 1.221 0.205 2422
2009 0.331 0.034 0.365 0.385 0.202 0.587 1.058 0.186 1.244 0217 2413
2010 0.330 0.035 0.365 0.394 0.199 0.593 1.073 0.220 1.293 0.226 2.477
2011 0.331 0.034 0.365 0.3% 0.197 0.591 1.058 0.226 1.284 0.192 2.432
2012 0.336 0.029 0.365 0.401 0.185 0.586 1.059 0.230 1.289 0.193 2.433
2013 0.340 0.025 0.365 0412 0.182 0.594 [.059 0.217 1.276 0.194 2.429
2014 0.34] 0.024 0.365 0419 0.189 0.608 1.058 0.235 1.293 0.193 2.459
2015 0.340 0.025 0.365 0.430 0.186 0.6l6 1.059 0.244 1.303 0.203 2.487

Source: Je{terson County Tax Assessor Collector

{n) Owcrlapping rates wre those of Jocal governmenis that apply (o properly vwners within JelTerson Counly. Notall overlapping rates apply Lo all JefTerson Caunly properly nwners.
{c.g.. the rates [or special districts apply only 1o the proportion ol the County's properly owners whose property is located within the geographic boundaries ol the special district.)

Note: Rules are per $100 of taxable value. Rates T'or overlapping entilies are an average tx rate of all cities (6), school distriets (7), and special districts (13) located within JelTersou County.
For liscal year 2014, total rates ranged belween 2158 and 7920 for citics, 1.12 and 1.434 Tor school districts, and .0286 and ,5734 Tor special districts.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

TABLE §

Percentage of

Percentage of

Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayers Value (b) Value Value (b) Value
Motiva Refinery $ 5,105,290,380 | 20.10% $ 831,955,020 2 5.93%
ExxonMeobil Qil Corporation 2,373,637,534 2 9.35% 1,834,347,120 1 12.76%
Premcor Refining Group Inc 1,070,844,203 3 4.22% 486,682,210 4 3.39%
Total Petrochemicals USA 813,675,000 4 3.20% 398,391,930 5 2.77%
Huntsman Petrochernical Corp 396,122,490 3 1.56% 781,330,160 3 5.44%
Chevron Phillips Chemical Co 370,139,650 G 1.46% 292 795,180 6 2.04%
Sunoco Partners Mktg & Term LP 349,630,290 7 1.38% - -
BASF-Arofina Jeint Venture 326,059,730 8 1.28% - -
Entergy Texas Inc. 257,924 820 9 1.17% 241,884,430 1.68%
Enterprise Texas Pipeline LP 289,651,870 10 1.14% - -
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co. - - 202,103,580 1.41%
Port Arthur Coker Company LP - 147,417,950 1.03%
E [ Dupont De Nemours - - 134.039,950 0.93%
TOTAL $11,392,975947 44 86% $5.370,949,550 37.38%

Source: Jefferson County Appraisal Dhistrict.

(b) Amounts shown for these taxpayers do not include assessed values attributable to certain subsidiaries and affiliates which

are not grouped on the tax roll with the taxpayers shown.
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PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected within the Fiscal

Yecar of the Levy

TABLE 9

Total Collections to Date

Fiscal Year Total Tax Collections in
Ended Levy for Percentage Subsequent Percentage
September 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
20006 $ 60,781,088  § 59,849.203 98.47%  § 687,188 60,536,391 99.60%
2007 64,519,705 63,544,312 08.49% 762,482 64,306,794 99.67%
2008 70,671,952 69,387,969 08.18% 1,030,560 70,418,529 99.64%
2009 74,722,657 73,704,158 08.64% 727,510 74,431,068 99.61%
2010 74,410,829 73,446,110 08.70% 626,148 74,072,258 99.54%
2011 79,156,074 77,966,579 98.50% 780,482 78,747,061 99.48%
2012 83,545,215 82,381,734 08.61% 685,052 83,066,786 99.43%
2013 89,361,867 88,220,195 08.72% 560,942 88,781,137 99.35%
2014 92,542,074 91,329,673 08.69% 446,025 91,775,698 99.17%
2015 91,217,652 89,902,191 98.56% - £9,902,191 08.56%
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 10

General Percentage of

Fiscal Obligation Notes Capital Total Primary Personal

Year Bonds Payable Leases Government Income (a) Per Capita (a)
2006 $ 79,392,478 $ 2,648,987 $ 101,959 3 82,143,424 1.20% 5 332
2007 75,385,127 2,332,066 52,224 77,769,417 1.09% $ 319
2008 71,912,777 2,005,529 - 73,918,300 0.96% $ 305
2009 68,290,426 1,669,086 - 09,959,512 0.85% h 289
2010 64,553,045 1,322,435 1,144,977 67,020,457 0.74% $ 266
2011 60,664,579 965,267 585,075 62,214,921 0.60% $ 247
2012 56,704,005 597,263 - 57,301,268 0.59% $ 227
2013 52,482,467 218,094 - 52,700,561 0.55% $ 209
2014 49,281,192 - - 49,281,192 0.49% $ 195
2015 44,444 3723 - 1,707,363 46,151,686 0.46% $ 183

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

{a) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for personal income and population data.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percentage of

TABLE 11

Estimated
Less: Actual
General Amounts Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Available in Value (a)
Year Bonds Debt Fuud Total of Property Per Capita (b)
2006 $ 79,392,478 $ 337,083 $ 79,055,395 0.55% $ 319
2007 75,385,127 318,212 75,066,915 0.45% 308
2008 71,912,777 76,619 71,836,158 0.38% 297
2009 68,290,426 176,339 68,114,087 0.32% 281
2010 04,553,045 330,833 64,222,212 0.30% 255
2011 60,664,579 354,241 60,310,338 0.27% 239
2012 56,704,005 716,106 55,987,899 0.24% 221
2013 52,482,407 901,217 51,581,250 0.20% 205
2014 49,281,192 1,010,241 48,270,951 0.19% 19]
2015 44,444,323 1,096,051 43,348,272 0.17% 172

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) Sce the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property m Table 6 for

property value data.

(b) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for population data.



Governmental Unit

JEFFERSON COUNTY DIRECT DEBT

Tosal Direct Debt

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

TABLE 12

OVERLAPPING DEBT REPAID WITH PROPERTY TAXES:

CITIES:
BEAUMONT
BEVIL OAKS
GROVES
NEDERLAND
PORT ARTHUR
PORT NECHES
TAYLOR LANDING
SCHOOL DISTRICTS:
BEAUMONT
HAMSHIRE FANNETT
HARDIN JEFFERSON
NEDERLAND
PORT ARTHUR
PORT NECHES
SABINE PASS
PORT DISTRICTS:
BEAUMONT
PORT ARTHUR
SABINE PASS
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS:
DRADINAGE DISTRICTS #3
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS =6
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS #7
NAVIGATION DISTRICTS:
JEFFERSON COUNTY

MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS:

NORTHWEST FOREST
WATER DISTRICTS:
WATER DISTRICT #10

EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICTS:

EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #1 -
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #2 -
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #3 -

CONSERVATION DISTRICTS:
TRINITY BAY
[MPROVEMENT DISTRICT:
CARDINAL MEADOWS
Total Overlapping Debt

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable Estimated Share of

Debt Qutstanding (a) Overlapping Debt
$44,444,323 100.0% $44 444,323
§44,444 323
217,504,350 100.0% 217,504,350
1,930,000 100.0% 1,930,000
3,230,000 100.0% 3,230,000
12,345,000 100.0% 12,345,000
51,643,000 100.0% 61,643,000
12,610,000 100.0% 12,610,000

- 100.0% -
379,003,000 100.0% 379,003,000
24,230,000 100.0% 24,230,000
31,185,230 532.7% 16,434,616
32,170,000 100.0% 32,170,000
247,535,000 100.0% 247,533,000
106,262,532 100.0% 106,262,532
28,126,175 100.0% 28,126,175
4,190,000 100.0% 4,190,000
29,120,000 100.0% 29,120,000
905,000 100.0% 905,000
1,323,142 100.0% 1,323,142

- 100.0% -
15,481,000 100.0% 15,481,000

- 100.0% -

- 100.0% -
3,063,000 100.0% 5,063,000

100.0% -

100.0% -

100.0% -

- 100.0% -

- 100.0% -
$1.199,111 815
$1,243,536,138

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

Sources: Debt gutsianding data was provided by each ol (he (axing entities.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries ol the
county. This schedule estiinates the pertion ol the outsianding deb! of these overlapping governmems that is
borne by Lhe residents and businesses of Jefferson County. This process recognizes thal, when considering

the Counry's ability to issue and repay long-lerm debt, the entire debl burden borne by the residents and
businesses should be 1aken into account. Fowever, this does nol imply that cvery taxpayer is a resident, and
therefore responsibie for repaying the debl, ol ezch overlapping government.

(a) The pereentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimared using taxable assessed property values. Applicable
pereentages were estimaled by determining the portion of taxing ennty that is wilbin the County’s boundaries
and dividing il by be taxing enlity’s w1al taxable assessed value.
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Dbt linin

Tolal nel debt applicable (o limit
Legal debt margin

Total nel debl applicable 10 the

limmiv as o percentage ol debt
limit

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORNMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amonnts expressed in thousands)

IPiscal Year

TABLE 13

2005 2000 2007 2008 29 2010 2001 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 3,639,382 £3,502210 33,048,502 $4,534.760  $35,000472  $4.825200 % 5,042,794 35,124,994 $ 5,580,038 50,458,093 5 6,195350
82,888 79,203 75,177 71,508 68,149 64.234 60,416 60416 48,404 44,070 39,564
$ 3,550,494 § 3,423,007 £ 3,873,325 $4.462,852 $4.,902.323 $4,760,967 5 4982378 3 5064578 §5531,634 $06,414,023 $ 6,156,256
1.38% 220% 1.90% 1.59% 1.35% 1.33% 1.20% I.18% 0.87% .68% 0.04%

Legal Debt Margin Caleulztion for Fiscal Year 2015

Assessed Value of Real Property

Debt linil (25% ol assessed value of real property)
Debi applicable to limil:

General abligation bonds

Less: Amount set aside for repayment

ol general obligation debt

Tatat net debl 2pplicable (o limit

Legal debt margin

Note: Under Article 11, Section 52 of the Stale Conslitwion , JelTerson County’s vutslanding general nbligation debt should not exceed 25% ol
assessed valualion of real property. By liw, the gencral obligation debi subjeet o the limitation inay be offset by amounts scl aside for repaying

general obligation bonds.

§ 24,783,404

6,195,850

40,660

1,096

$ 39,564
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 14

Personal

Income

(amounts Per Capita School
Fiscal expressed in Personal Median Enrollment  Unemployment
Ycar Population (a) thousands) Income (b) Age (a) (a) Rate (b)
2006 247,571 $ 6,854,993 § 27,689 36.5 62,002 0.6%
2007 243914  § 7,152,534 § 29,324 36.4 59,776 5.7%
2008 241975 & 7,684,158 § 31,750 36.7 62,290 7.3%
2009 242,142 § 8,183,189 § 33,795 36.5 61,721 10.7%
2010 252,273 % 9,099,739 § 36,071 35.0 62,433 10.6%
2011 252,273 % 9,369,167 § 37,139 36.0 63,371 11.7%
2012 252,802 $ 9,786,471 § 38,712 35.9 63,371 10.2%
2013 251,813 § 9,658,791 & 38,357 36.0 63,433 10.1%
2014 252,358  $ 10,083,721 § 39,958 35.9 63,350 7.8%
2015 252,235 % 9,971,354 § 39,532 359 61,768 6.6%

Data sources

(a) Bureau of Census
{b) Texas Workforce Commission



TABLE |5
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PRINCTPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2015 2006
Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County
Emplover Employees Rank Employment Emplovees Rank  Employment
State of Texas 4,229 | 4.08% 4,372 1 421%
Beaumont [SD 2.672 2 2.58% 2,890 3 2.78%
ExxonMobil Oil Corporation 2.000 3 1.93% 2,150 4 2.07%
Christus Health Southeast Texas 1,991 4 1.92% 3,003 2 2.89%
Mermorial Hermann Baptist Hospiral 1,553 5 1.50% 1,556 [¢] 1.50%
Motiva Enterprises 1,540 6 1.49% -
Pon Arthur ISD 1,263 7 1.22% 1,233 8 -
Ciry of Beaurnont 1,235 8 1.19% 1,283 7 1.23%
Jefferson County 1,182 0 1.14% 1,147 9 -
Valero 845 10 0.82% -
U S Postal Encoding - - 1,081 10 1.04%
E.l. DuPont Sabine River Works - - 1,686 3 1.62%
TOTAL 18.510 17.87% 20,403 17.34%

Source: Employment numbers provided by each enticy
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of September 30

TABLE 16

Function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2006 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
General Government 169 176 171 180 170 166 164 166 165 165
Judicial & Law Enforcement
Deputies 114 122 124 131 134 131 134 138 138 143
Detention Officers 222 239 221 240 242 238 238 241 238 237
Others 439 435 436 441 444 440 442 436 443 440
Education & Recreation 14 17 18 18 20 14 15 15 15 15
Health & Welfare 64 33 56 63 63 59 60 60 60 60
Maintenance - Equipment &
Structures
Road & Bridges 59 71 70 69 68 67 66 64 64 60
Engineering 10 9 10 10 G 10 10 10 10 10
Maintenance 31 30 27 30 29 28 28 30 27 28
Jack Brooks Regional Airport 25 23 26 23 25 25 23 24 25 24
Ford Park 125 101 79 22 23 19 20 23 21 20
TOTAL 1,272 1,278 1,238 1,227 1,227 1,198 1,200 1,207 1,206 1,202

Sources: County and Ford Park payroll records
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TABLE 17
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN VISCAL YEARS

FISCAL YEAR

Funciion 2006 2(07 2008 2009 20010 20111 2012 2013 2014 2015
Judicial & Law Lnforcement
Courts
Number of Indigent Cases | leard 2,082 2,839 2,984 2,945 2,945 2,490 2413 3,249 3.392 3,727
Number of Justice ol Peace Cascs 47.027 51416 50,997 43326 41,488 44,642 48,363 43,205 41,359 33717
SherilT
Number ol Arrests 6,147 6423 6,543 6,404 6,573 6,099 6,023 5,898 5507 5,730
Number ol Citations t.203 1.242 2,300 1112 1,043 1,241 1,081 915 1,558 1.615
Jail
Average Daily Population of Imnales 9359 1171 GE6 899 S 920 815 767 855 830
Conslables
Numbur of Papers Scived 21,209 19,874 15,847 15,954 16,967 16,860 15,344 15,472 17,348 18,276
Edueation & Recreation
Library
Number of Palren Visils 6,129 5,995 6,300 4,002 1.536 n/a® nia " nfa® nfa " nfa"

[ealth & Wellare
Healtls & Welfare

Nunber of Patients Seen in Clinie 7.36) 80101 8,310 4,375 11,531 11,968 11,644 7,433 11,314 10,508
Muosquite Contsol
Number of Acreage Sprayed 2.613.632 1,386,752 1,393.743 2,175,872 1070464 18,972 1,328,128 TO0.672 1.048.256 563,520

Maintenance - Cauipment & Structures
Road & Bridge

Road Miles Mainlained 368 368 370 370 370 370 369 370 370 369

Airport

Number of Aircralt Operations 61,856 55350 127273 27.891 26,332 22,602 22,515 20,351 19,109 15,462

Number ol Enplaned 25.687 25,650 22,126 22,174 17,957 18.098 5,666 24,069 36.605 14879

Nuamber ol Deplaned 26,219 26,117 22,347 21,588 17,997 18,207 5,328 24,351 15,340 34,517
Tealth Insusance Risk Pool

Number of Participants in Plin 1,389 1,429 1,490 §,54 1 1,568 1,550 1,581 1.012 1,807 1,652
Entertainnient Complex ’

Number ol Events 199 160 221 183 198 188 185 176 174 17¢

Tolal Attendance 248,639 617246 280,012 (658,337 047207 629,123 712,688 66K 718 650,089 303,562

Sources: Vorious eounty departinents
Nole: Indicators are not available for the general government lunetions.

~ Lilrary was closed 12/31710.
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TABLE I8
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FISCAL YEAR
Function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Judicial & Law Enforcement
Sherilf
Patroal Units 92 109 119 116 120 122 122 126 121 123
Aviation Units 3 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 3 3
Marine Units 3 3 4 v 9 Il Il I 11 I
Jail
Donns 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23
Bed Capacily 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268
Conslables
Patrol Unils 29 29 30 31 32 27 24 29 32 28
Educalion & Recreation
Library Holdings {ie books, audio, video) 45,378 44,281 46,104 35,549 36,038 nfa ~ wah nfa ™ nfa ® nfa~
Health & Welfare
Mosquite Conlrol
Mosquito Spray Trucks b 8 8 8 8 b 8 8 8 8
Weed Conltrol Trucks 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Aviation Unils 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Maintenance - Equipment & Structurcs
Road (miles) 368 368 370 370 370 370 369 370 370 369
Bridges 65 65 65 65 65 65 G5 65 65 65
Aimort
Runways (lincar feel) 11,820 V1,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820
T-Hangar & Open Span Hangars (square feet) 138,700 154,374 144,274 123,076 123,076 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470
Office Spaee (square feet) 15,055 15,535 14,439 14,426 14,426 18,885 18,885 43,850 43,850 43,850
Entertainment Complex
Number of venues 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Soflball Fields 2 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Exhibil Floor Space (square fecl) 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,060
Seating Capacily 23,500 23,500 23.500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500

Sources: Various counly deparlmenls
Note: Indicators are nol available for (he general governmend funclion.

~ Library was closed 12/31/10.








